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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Hong Kong International Consfruction Investment Management Group
Co., limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 20th Floor, One Island South,
No. 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:

e foundation piling and site invesfigation
*  property development

L property investment and management

Upon the completion of the acquisition of 577,279,496 shares of the
Company by HNA Finance | Co., ltd. from Tides Holdings Il lid. on 30
June 2016, the Company has become a subsidiary of HNA Finance |
Co., lid.

As at 31 December 2016, the immediate holding company of the
Company is HNA Finance | Co., lid., a company incorporated in
Anguilla with limited liability and ultimately controlled by Hainan
Province Cihang Foundation.
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—H

1.

NEAREBER ()

KB 2 Al E#

ARARIEEMBARFENT -

&

Name

RAME(BE)ERAR
([RAE(EB) ) Wit S5)

Tysan Foundotion (Hong Kong) Limited
("TFHKL') frote 5]

FAMETE(BE)ERAA
(HE1RS)

Tyson Contracors (Hong Kong) Limited
fnotes | and 3)

RARECRM)ERAANZ 1 RS)
Tysan Construction [Macau] Limited
fnotes [ and 3)

RANBIRARDAME - 2R5)
Tyson Foundation Limied
fnotes 1, 2 and 3)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Bl
AR ERES
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

A

Macau

Hong Kong

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERfIRS/
BREMmER
Issued share/
paid-up
registered capital

LER100AT
Ordinary HK$100

TER2AT
Ordinary HK$2

L3RR 25,0008
Ordinary
MOP25,000

LEk
141,000,000
Ordinary
HK$141,000,000
JEATAR3,000,000/8 T
Deferred
HK$3,000,000

+2A=+-A
31 December

ADTRME
RERDL
Percentage of equity

aftributable o
the Company

I I Se

=R=1-H

31 March

2016 2016

95 60

95 60

95 60

95 60

Principal activities

REDR
Investment
holding

HAEENR
RUGEARE R
Project management
and provision

of consulioncy

and management

services

HEITHE

Foundation
pling

HEITER
HERHE
Foundation
piling and site
investigation



REREEER (E)

B8 2 AIE# (4E)

ARFEEMBATFENT : (%)

t#

Name

RAMETNIRERRAMZ 1 KS)
Tysan Foundation Geotechnical Limited
fnotes | and 3)

RARWBEERAAW:L ] 2K5)
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited
fnotes 1, 2and 3)

RERRIRERARAMZ )
Proficiency Equipment Limited frote /)

TETREERROAMNZ /)
Proficiency Engineering Limited fnofe //

AL/
AR EFLE
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business

B
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd]

EBTRY/ ARFRLE
BREMER ZRERDL
Issued share/ Percentage of equity

paidup aftributable fo IEXK
registered capital the Company Principal activities

“E-5F ZTREF

tzAZ+-R  =AZt-F

31 December 31 March

2016 2016
£481R 10,000,000 95 60 HWETER
Ordinary WRUE
HK$10,000,000 Foundation
pling and site
investigation
L3R 10,0008 95 60 e
Ordinary HK$10,000 Machinery
TR 200,000/ hiring

Deferred HK$200,000

LBk 24,480,000 100 100 BREERER
Ordinary Machinery
HK$24,480,000 hiring ond frading
LRR2ET 100 100 REIRRER
Ordinary HK$2 BHEE
Provision of
engineering
senvices and
machinery hiring
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—H

1. RAREEERGE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BB 2 e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEMNBRRINFENT - (#) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd)
YL/
AR EFLE ERTRE/ ARARLE
Place of BREMmER ZRERDL
incorporation/ Issued share/ Percentage of equity

£ registration paidup attributable to IEXHK
Name and business registered capital the Company Principal activities

“E-nF ERF

TZA=1-H =A=1-8

31 December 31 March

2016 2016
BIEERARAMZ ) & BRR2AT 100 100 BHEEREE
Lion Bright Limited /oo 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Machinery
hiring and frading
ERBRRAME]) A LAk 25,000 M7 100 100 RETRES
Mac Proficiency limited froe 1/ Macau Ordinary REmiEE
MOP25,000 Provision of
engineering
senvices and
machinery hiring
RACBERAAN:LL) &5 ERR16720850%T 100 100 tXER
Tysan Management Limited /rofe 2/ Hong Kong Ordinary Corporate
HK$ 16,720,850 management

BER2BT
Deferred HK$2

ERARAT & LRR1ET 100 100 tRRE
Great Unison Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$ Corporate
financing
RAREERERAA Bk BRR2ET 100 100 RERR
Tysan Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK§2 Investment
holding
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REREEER (E) 1.

BB 2 AIEH ()
ARREEMBARNFHENT : (£)

AL/

AfREREH

Place of

incorporation/

£H registration

Name and business

RARERRAT &

Tysan Construction Company Limited Hong Kong

Cottontree Pacific Limited* EERIES

British Virgin Island

(‘B

Tysan Foundation Holdings Limited* (4% 7) BRE

fote 1) Bermuda

RANELRRERRAA B

Tysan Property Development Hong Kong
& Investment Limited

EERERRARM:L]) &

Sure Faith Invesment Limited fnote // Hong Kong

BREMERRLR ML) B

Duncan Propeties Limited fnore 7/ Hong Kong

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd]

ERTRE/ ROFRELE
BRMER ZRERAL
Issued share/ Percentage of equity
paidup aftributable fo IEXH
registered capital the Company Principal activifies
ZE-RE SN2
TZR=1+-H =R=1+-H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
LER2AT 100 100 RERR
Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment
holding
Lk AT 100 100 RERR
Ordinary HK$1 Investment
holding
EER01BT 100 100 RERR
Ordinary HK$0.1 Invesment
holding
LER 2B 100 100 RERR
Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
LER2AT 100 100 RENE
Ordinary HK$2 Property
holding
LER 2B 100 100 RERR
Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—H

1. RAREEERGE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BB 1 el EH () Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEMNBRRINFENT - (#) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd)
YL/
AR EFLE ERTRE/ AR
Place of BREMmER ZRERDL
incorporation/ Issued share/ Percentage of equity

£ registration paidup attributable to IEXHK
Name and business registered capital the Company Principal activities

“E-nF ERF

TZA=1-H =A=1-8

31 December 31 March

2016 2016
Dragonhill Limited (473# /) & LRR2AT 100 100 RERR
fnoe 1) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
ERERERAAH:L]) & LRR100%T 100 100 RERK
CG [HY) International Limited frore 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Invesiment
holding
lronwood Pacific Limited* (473# /) ABRAES LRR 100X 100 100 RERR
fnoe 1) BVI Ordinary US$100 Investment
holding
Beneficial Enterprises Limited* (#/z2 /) ABRAES LRR 100X 100 100 RERK
fnoke 1) BVI Ordinary US$100 Investment
holding
BRTRRAAMNZ ) & BRR2AT 100 100 RERR
Fund House Limited fnote /) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment
holding
EANEER (L8) ARAR o/ 500,000%7 100 100 nEER
(H#IR3) EI US$500,000 Properly
Duncan Property Management (Shanghail PRC/ management

Compony Limited* fnotes / and 3/ Mainlond China
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RNEREEER (E)

B8 2 AIE# (4E)

ARFEEMBATENT : ()

t#

Name

Alloright Invesiment Limited* (#4i£ /)
fnoke 1)

IABREERARHZ])
Red Shine Investment Limited fnote 7/

Federated Resources Limited* (A7 /)
fnoke 1)

ENFERARAME])
Cariiway limited fnoe 1/

EREERRAELLERRR"
(Wit k3)
Shanghai Changning Duncan Property
Consuliing Company Limied*
fnotes [ and 3)

MRREARAAMZ 1)

Great Regent Invesiments Limited note /]

AL/
AR EFLE
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business

RBRLES
BV

Hong Kong

RBRLES
BV

Hong Kong

hE/
HElN

PRC/

Minland China

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd]

EBTRY/ ARFRLE
BREMER ZRERDL
Issued share/ Percentage of equity
paidup aftributable fo IEXH
registered capital the Company Principal activifies
“E-5F ZTREF
tzB=t-p  ZA=t-A
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
LARI00ET 100 100 RERR
Ordinary US$100 Invesiment
holding
BRR2ET 100 100 REmk
Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
LER100%ET 100 100 RERR
Ordinary US$100 Invesiment
holding
BRR2ET 100 100 REmk
Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
AR#200,0007C 100 100 k3]
RMB200,000 Property
conslfing
LRR2ET 100 100 RARRY Rt
Ordinary HK$2 HERE RS
Investment
holding and
provision of
sales and

markefing services
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—H

1. RAREEERGE) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BB 2 e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEMNBRRINFENT - (#) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd)
YL/
AR EFLE ERTRE/ ARARLE
Place of BREMmER ZRERDL
incorporation/ Issued share/ Percentage of equity
£ registration paidup attributable to IEXHK
Name and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
“E-nF ERF
tZAZ+-R  ZAZt-R
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FRFHE (L§) BRAF" R/ 1,000,000%7 100 100 B
(W#1R4) R US$1,000,000 Propery
Tysan Land (Shanghai Limited* PRC/ development
fnotes [ and 4) Mainland China
REARAANZ ) Bk LRR100%T 100 100 REBRLRE
Great Prosper Limited fnofe /] Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 HERE BTG
Investment
holding and
provision of
soles and
markefing services
FARMERE(R2)ERAA" o/ 15,500,000%7 100 100 NEER
(WFI1R3) HER US$15,500,000 Properly
Tysan Property Development (Tianjin] PRC/ development
Compony Limited* fnoles / and 3/ Mainlond China
BERRAANZ ) & L3RR 10,0007 100 100 RERK
Sparkle Key limited frofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary Invesiment
HK$10,000 holding
RARHE(ER) ERAR* hE/ 108,300,000% 7t 100 100 NEER
(W1 R3) eI, US$108,300,000 Property
Tysan land (Shenyang] Limited* PRC/ development
fnotes [ and 3) Mainland China
BETRERARN:L]) Bk LAR AR 100 T BRER
Gainful Engineering Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$ Project
fnote 1) management
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iz -

1.

2.

HRMBEL AR o
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HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016 —E—X¥+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd]

Nofes:

1.

2.

Held through subsidiaries.

The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends [other than a fixed
non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial
year during which the net profit of the relevant company available for
dividends exceeds HK$1 billion), no rights to vote at general meefings,
no rights to receive any surplus on a refurn of capital on a winding-up
[other than the amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders
of the ordinary shares of that company have been distributed in such a
winding-up of a sum of HK$1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary
share).

These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the PRC law.

This entity is registered as an Sinoforeign joint venture under the PRC
low.

On 4 July 2016, the Company acquired additional 35% equity interests
in TFHKL and its subsidiaries. Further defails of the acquisition are set out
in note 39 to the financial statements.

Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not audited by
Emst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the period

or formed a substantial portion of the nef assets of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

F3; 2016

81



82

Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—H

2.

3.1
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3.1

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

During the period, the board of directors of the Company resolved fo
change the financial year end date of the Company from 31 March fo
31 December effective from 31 December 2016 in order fo align the
financial year end date of the Company with HNA Group Co., lid.,
the intermediate holding company of the Company. The consolidated
financial stafements presented for the current period therefore covered
a ninemonth period from 1 April 2016 to 31 December 2016. The
corresponding comparative amounts presented for the consolidated
statements of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the
consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes, which are
prepared for the year from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016, may not
be comparable with amounts shown for the current period.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Inferpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for owner-occupied property being
fransferred fo investment property, investment properties and derivative
financial instruments which have been measured af fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and
all values are rounded fo the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial stafements include the financial stafements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group’)
for the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 December 2016. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, confrolled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable refums from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability fo affect those returns through its power over the investee
[i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

Basis of consolidation (Contd

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

[a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other confractual arrangements; and

[c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains confrol, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling inferests
having a deficit balance. All infra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating fo fransactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises |i] the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, i) the carying
amount of any non-controlling interest and |iii] the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment refained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified fo profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—H

3.2 EMBERREEZZE 3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

AEE DR AR 2 MR HRK &R R The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

THEHTRBETEBHBRELE first time for the current period's financial statements.

Al

BEUMBREEY RETEEF Amendments fo HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
F105%  FE HEAEZ HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the Consolidation Excepfion
PBIRELER pISMER (2011)

F12%NER
ST REAIF 285

(Z2—%)
ZIER]
BERMBRERER  UEHAAEE Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
%11 5R 25 B A BT EHE Interests in Joint Operations
BRMBRELEN EETELKA HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
F145%
R w’FE:E Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

F 1R ERT

BEg LR EZTERE Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Accepfable
F10FREE D AHEE and HKAS 38 Methodss of Depreciation and
SEHERIE 38 5% Amortisation
2]

EycEpgl BE HENM Amendments fo HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
FI16RREE izt and HKAS 41
SEERIE 41 5%

ZIER]

BRQHENE 275 BUABHET Amendments 1o Fquity Method in Separate
(ZE—%) AR % HKAS 27 (2011) Financial Statements
ZIER]

—E_FF HETEBME Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
—E-mEESY R 20122014 Cycle
FRIE fEL I ERT

PR AT R AR (B R AR RISE A 0 The adoption of the above new and revised standards has had no

BB RELEANBTE - significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HEELEA -

BEMBREIE  ROHERS

E2FZBT  RBZAH
RitE?

FEUBREEN  HASEHE

BAFZBT  BEENEOH
£HIAEH
ERHBHE
REEE
REAAP

EEUBREIE  PRIA
£9%

EEMBREE  REERARE
E0ORREE  AAERF2H
BHERRBY  mEENE
(c3——%) A
21647

FRUBREL  REESAOH
£15% oA

FEMBRELN  SENEAL
EISHZET  BAEISH

REBFEH
DUAZBE

FeapnLLn  EE
£16%

FoeiE  AEE
£7H2 I8

Fb e AR
E12926T  BAZEE

REAE

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS @

Amendments fo HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts®

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between

an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Revenve from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenve
from Contracts with Customers’

leases®

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised losses'
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

‘ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 15 esfablishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration fo which an
entity expects to be enfifled in exchange for transferring goods or
services fo a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of tofal revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in confract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
15 to address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are
also infended to help ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying the
standard. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018
and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 leases, HK(IFRIC)HInt 4 Defermining
whether an Arrangement confains a lease, HK(SICHnt 15 Operating
leases - Incentives and HK(SIC)nt 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the legal Form of a lease. The standard sefs
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assefs
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and shortterm
leases. At the commencement dafe of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments [i.e., the lease liability) and an
assef representing the right fo use the underlying asset during the lease
ferm [i.e., the rightofuse asset). The rightofuse asset is subsequently
measured af cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the rightof-use asset meets the definition of invesiment
property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the inferest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. lessees will be required 1o separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right
of-use asset. lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rafe used fo determine those payments. lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjusiment fo the rightof-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors
will continue o classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and
is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an enfity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will result in
additional disclosure to be provided in the financial stafements. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associafe is an entity in which the Group has a long term inferest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position fo exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's inferests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised direcly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from fransactions between the Group and ifs associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's investments in the associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
fransferred.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any refained investment at ifs fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Fair valve measurement

The Group measures its invesiment properties and derivative financial
instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid fo transfer
a liability in an orderly fransaction between market participants af
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or fransfer the liability
fakes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best inferest.

A fair value measurement of a nondfinancial asset fakes info account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in ifs highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in ifs highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Fair valve measurement [Cont'd)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
o the fair value measurement as a whole:

level 1 = based on quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

level 2= based on valuation fechniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

level 3~ based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assefs and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exisfs, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required [other than investment properties,
properties under development, properties held for sale, inventories,
consfruction contract assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the assef's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is defermined for an individual
asset, unless the assef does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assefs or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
fo which the assef belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the esfimated
future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-fax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific fo the assef. An impairment loss is charged
fo the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense cafegories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as fo
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been defermined [nef of any depreciation/
amortisation] had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Related parties

A party is considered fo be related to the Group if:

[a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

[il  has control or joint control over the Group;
i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i} is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

i} one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
[or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the enfity is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related o the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(viil o person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over
the entity or is @ member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Related parties/Cont'd)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Cont'd)

(viii] ~ the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or fo the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are sfated af cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and
location for ifs infended use. Expenditure incurred affer items of property,
plant and equipment have been put info operation, such as repairs and
mainfenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criferia
are safisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capifalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required fo be replaced
at infervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of properly, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the fotal of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess
of the deficit is charged to the stafement of profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited fo the sfatement of profit or loss to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual fransfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to refained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset
and the depreciation based on the asset's original cost. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is fransferred fo refained profits
as a movement in reserves.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont'd)

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis fo write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment fo ifs residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Lleasehold land

under finance leases Over the lease terms

Buildings 5%

Equipment and machinery 10%-33'/, %
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Motor yacht 10%

10%-33'/,%

leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, af least af each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from ifs use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are inferests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
eam rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially af cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions af the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of invesiment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the sfatement of profit or loss in the year of
the refirement or disposal.

IF o property occupied by the Group as an owneroccupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up fo the date of change in use, and any
difference of that date between the carrying amount and the fair value
of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above. For a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any
difference between the fair value of the property at that date and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in the sfatement of profit or loss.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, which include all development expenditure, borrowing costs and
other costs directly atfributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which have either been pre-sold or which
are intended for sale and are expected fo be completed within one year
from the end of the reporting period are classified as current assefs.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial position
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost
of land, inferest capitalised during the period of development and
other direct cosfs aftributable to the development of the properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis, less all costs to completion, if
applicable, and costs of marketing and selling.

leases

leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs fo the Group, other than legal fifle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the inferest element, fo
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged fo the statement of profit or loss so as fo provide a constant
periodic rafe of charge over the lease terms.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Leases (Contd)

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the sfraightline basis over the lease terms.

Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straightline basis
over the lease ferms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assefs are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assefs
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
forsale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised inifially, they are measured at fair value plus fransaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asses,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assefs depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position af fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies sef out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criferia in HKAS 39 are safisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host confracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement (Cont d)

Loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assefs with fixed or
deferminable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured af amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an infegral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

Availablefor-sale financial investments

Availablefor-sale financial investments are nonderivative financial assets
in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the availableforsale
investment revaluation reserve until the invesiment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other income, or unfil the investment is determined
fo be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the availableforsale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the availableforsale financial investments are reported as
inferest income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement (Cont d)

Availablefor-sale financial investments (Contdl)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value esfimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in esfimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention fo sell its available-
forsale financial assets in the near ferm are still appropriate. When, in
rare circumstances, the Group is unable fo frade these financial assets
due fo inactive markets, the Group may elect fo reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and infention fo hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the availableforsale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective inferest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then
the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assefs

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the assef have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in inferest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enfer bankruptey or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows [excluding future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted af the financial assef's original effective interest rate |i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rafe of inferest used fo discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Lloans and receivables
fogether with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been fransferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit

or loss.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Availablefor-sale financial investments

For availablefor-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost [net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulafive loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisiion cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

"

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised |i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred ifs rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has fransferred ifs rights to receive cash flows from an
assef or has entered info a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and
fo what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group confinues to recognise the fransferred asset fo the extent of the
Group's confinuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
fransferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the assef and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

Al financial liabiliies are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly affributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and refention payables,
interestbearing bank borrowings, and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After inifial recognition, inferest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rafe amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rafe amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Financial liabilities (Cont'd)
Subsequent measurement (Cont d)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those confracts
that require a payment fo be made fo reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the ferms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability af its fair valve, adjusted
for fransaction costs that are directly aftributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent o inifial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to seftle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an exisfing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is freated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right o offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention fo seftle on a net basis, or o redlise the assets and seftle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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(Contd)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts and interest rafe swaps, to hedge ifs foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivafive confract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assefs when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging
instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated into
current and non-current portions based on an assessment of the facts
and circumstances [i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows|.

*  Where the Group expecis to hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period
beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the
derivative is classified as non-current [or separated info current
and non-current portions) consistently with the classification of the
underlying item.

e Embedded derivatives that are not closely related fo the host
contract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the host
confract.

e Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective
hedging instruments, are classified consistently with the
classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
instruments are separated info current porfions and non-current
portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, firstout basis,
and net realisable value after making due allowance for any obsolete
or slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the

relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees eamed, measured by
the proportion of costs incurred fo date fo the estimated fofal cost of the

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where confract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an
amount due from a contract cusfomer.

Where progress billings exceed contract cosfs incurred to dafe plus
recognised profifs less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to a confract customer.
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—H

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposifs, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible info
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are nof resfricted as fo use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required fo seftle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value af the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected fo be required to sefile the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of fime is included in finance cosfs in the stafement of profit or
loss.
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income fax relating fo
items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current fox assefs and liabiliies are measured af the amount expected
fo be recovered from or paid fo the faxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all tfemporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assefs and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

*  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

®  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the femporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Income tax [Cont'd)

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised fo the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused fax losses can be utilised, except:

®  when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
fime of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
faxable profit or loss; and

®  in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced fo the exfent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
fax assefs are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised fo the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
faxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply fo the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is setfled, based on tax rates (and fax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred fax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assefs against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate fo the same faxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(a)

(bl

(c]

(d)

(e)

(9)

From foundation piling and site investigation contracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

From the sale of properties held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer;

From machinery frading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;

Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased
and on the straightline basis over the lease ferms;

From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
Interest income

On an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument fo the net
carrying amount of the financial assef; and

Dividend income

When shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
insiruments {“equity-sefiled transactions”).

The cost of equity-sefiled fransactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference fo the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-setiled fransactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equily, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-sefiled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
fo which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best esfimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit fo the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as af the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when defermining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions affached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered fo be non-vesting
condifions. Non-vesfing conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont '

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is
recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are freated as vesfing imespective of whether the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or conditions are satisfied.

Where the ferms of an equity-seffled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the tofal fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial o the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-sefiled award is cancelled, it is freated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where nonwesfing conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are freated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment confracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made af the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund”)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which were
held separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Confributions under the Fund
were made based on a percenfage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
became payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The
ongoing confributions fo the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured ifs
relirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
parficipated in an opproved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Confributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
confributions vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo parficipate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
confribute a cerfain percentage of their covered payroll to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the sfatement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capifalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their infended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
femporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capifalised.
All other borrowing cosfs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and other cosfs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company'’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group defermines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency fransactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective funcfional currency rates prevailing af the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are franslated af the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling af the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are franslated using the exchange rates af the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
franslation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item [i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As af the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated info Hong Kong
dollars af the exchange rates prevailing af the end of the reporting
period and their stafements of profit or loss are franslated info Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resuliing exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relafing to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated info Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are franslated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management makes various judgements and estimates based on past
experience, expectations of the future and other information. The key
sources of esfimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Impairment of trade and retention receivables

The policy for impairment of trade and refention receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis
of frade and refention receivables and on management's judgement.
Significant judgement and esfimates is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, based on the current creditworthiness,
the past collection history and subsequent seflements of each customer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were fo deferiorate,
resuliing in an impairment of their ability o make payments, addifional
provisions may be required. Further details are disclosed in nofe 22 to
the financial stafements.

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percentage of completion of construction
works based on actual costs incurred over the total budgeted costs.
Corresponding confract revenue was also estimated by management
based on confract sum and works values from variation works. Because
of the nature of the activities undertaken for the construction contracts,
the date at which the confracts are enfered into and the date when the
contract are completed usually fall into different accounting periods. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of both contract revenue and
contract costs in the budget prepared for each construction confract as
the contract progresses.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Percentage of completion of construction works (Cont'd)

When defermining the fotal budgeted costs, management makes
reference to information such as (i) current or recent offers from
subcontractors and suppliers, [ii] variation orders received from
customers, and [iii) estimation on material costs, labour costs and other
costs for the completion of the projects provided by quantity survey
department.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject fo income faxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There
are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate fax defermination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such defermination is
made. Further defails are disclosed in notes 11 and 30 fo the financial

statements.

Mainland China land appreciation taxes [“LAT’)

LAT is levied at progressive rafes ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs, business taxes and all property development
expenditures. The tax is incurred upon fransfer of property ownership.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes (“LAT’) (Contd]

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. The Group has not
yet finalised ifs LAT calculation and payments for certain of its property
development projects with various tax authorities and the deductibility
of expenditures incurred for each project is uncertain. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management’s best estimates with reference fo the
past experience, fax regulations and correspondences with local tax
authorities. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the consolidated financial statements in the period in which such
determination is made. Further details are disclosed in note 11 to the
financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according fo the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Operating segments are reported
in a manner consistent with infernal reporting to the Company's key
management personnel as follows:

(a)  the foundation piling segment (including site investigation
operation);

(b} the property development segment;
[c]  the properly invesiment and management segment; and

(d)  the “corporate and others” segment comprises, principally, the
Group's corporate operation, and machinery leasing and trading
businesses.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit/loss before fax.

The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, and fair value gains/losses from the Group's

financial instruments are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude derivative financial instrument, deferred tax
assefs, fax prepaid and time deposits as these assefs are managed on
a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax
payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabiliies are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and fransfers are fransacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Geographical information

(@)  Revenue from external customers

i 3 HERHHE fa
Hong Kong Macay Eewhere n e PRC Consaldoted

H=§-7E -8R o871 H-§-7E

BA-8% BA-8% MA-AZ MA-AZ
ZE-E - BE  IEE EER— BE
t2REr-B ZEF fIREr-R EE fIBIt-R E0F fIBIt-R DR
L#8  ZA=1-R Lt#H  ZA=t-R It4H  =A=1-H 1o
Period from IEE Period from B8 Periodfrom B8 Periodfrom [
I Api Yeor 1 Api Yeor 1 Api Year 1 Api e
Wit ended W01t ended Wit ended Wibto ended
30December  3IMoch  31December  31Moch  31December  IMoch 31 December 31 Moch
18 016 016 016 016 016 2016 01
fér A fér Fér fér Tér tér Tér
o HS0 Ao HS0 Ao M o HS0

i e Seqrent revence:

HETIERP Soles o etemol cusomers 40464 3053602 343 17573 868993 80141 3030360 4057316

kAR R A

(b) ERBEE

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.

(b)  Non-current assets

g n HELHHE &a

Hong Kong Macau Ekenhere i he PRC Consoloeed
BE EE 0 BE 0 B E 0 BE 0 BF 0 IBE 0 R
T2R=t-R ZA=t-B f2RZt-R ZA=T-B tZBt-R AR tIBEt-B A=A
3December 3 Moch  31December  31Moch  31December  IMoch 31 December 31 Moch
2018 016 016 016 016 016 2016 il
féar AT i 7T i Tér tér fér
L 117/ 11/ 17/ /A ¢/ /A 1/ M 41141
336,820 336,734 - . 195,469 181773 589 S8

LIRS BEENEEMENE
REEATBRETHREE -

B —ETEEFZEH

Y & #9554,702,000% L(E = =
E-—ARE=ZA=T—-HLFE:
1,130,196,000% 7T ) T3 K B E 4T 15
NEA—RE-EPHELZHE -

The non-current assets information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$554,702,000 [year ended 31 March
2016: HK$1,130,196,000) was derived from sales by the foundation
piling segment to a single customer.

F3; 2016
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6. Wz - BB ARER - FEE 6.  REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
R EITE B ESNE Revenue represents the aggregate of the value of foundation piling and
B MEEEMBUA  BEDEMS site investigation contracts; income derived from property management;
MW REHEREHREE 2R rental income from property leasing; and income from the sale of
ZWA  EEEEARAE—EAR properties held for sale, after eliminations of all significant infragroup
PR KB - fransactions.

W~ B ARER - FEE 2o An analysis of revenue and other income and gains, net is as follows:
T~
B=2-1&
mA—-RZE
—E-REF
+t=ZA=+-H Bz
i) —F—RK
Period from  =HA=+—H
1 April EFE
2016 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET THT
HK$000 HK$000
oz Revenue:
WEITHE R B HE Foundation piling and site invesfigation 2,115,532 3,018,427
MEER Property development 886,388 059,964
MERERER Property investment and management 2,165 26177
Hith Others 26,475 52,748

3,030,560 4,057,316

HiARBH - % Other income and gains, net:
FEMA Interest income 10,235 15,546
Rigz(E Insurance claims 4 4,164
(GO Subsidy income* 205 226
PTHETAATEET— Fair value gains on derivative instruments
TEBREHZ S — transaction not qualifying as hedge 27,662 5,302
B IRBUA Management service income 312 413
HEMBARZBF - FHE Gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
(PE40) net [nofe 40) 126 112,852
HEME - KBS LRERA Gain on disposal of items of propery,
Z & plant and equipment 8,610 =
s Others 8,995 7,908
56,149 146,411
2 B AR TAU I AR AR 2 {61 sk * There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating fo this income.
REM -
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HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS
BZE—RF
MA—BAZ
—E-RE
+ZA=+—*H BZE
il —TRF
Period from —A=1+—H
1 April HFE
2016 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts 15,621 16,860
less: Inferest capitalised in properiies
under development [note 16) (6,556) (5,364)
9,065 11,496

F3; 2016
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8.  PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Cost of properties sold

Cost of foundation piling and

sife invesfigation work
Cost of services rendered
Depreciation
Minimum lease payments
under operating leases
Auditor's remuneration

Employee benefit expense (including
directors' remuneration - note 9):

Wages and salaries

Management incentive bonus*

Pension scheme contributions

Hiat
Nofe

The Group's profit before fax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

St SyN:3
MA—HZE
—E-RE
+ZB=+—H BE
LFERE —E-RF
Period from —A=+—H
1 April IHFE
2016 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$ 000
555,724 423,562
1,849,789 2,623,854
49,530 84,927
56,816 79,953
33,208 118,738
1,826 2,833
357,254 527100
192,408 5,573
14,778 15,916
564,440 548,589
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd))

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(Contd]

B=Z—XRF
mA—-HZ
—E-RE
+=A=t+—H Bz
LR —TRE
Period from =RA=+—H
1 April IHFE
2016 to Year ended
llifa 31 December 31 March
Notes 2016 2016
FET BT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
SNEEEH 1R - FEE Foreign exchange losses, net* 6,616 2,223
FEWE 5 RRFORE * Impairment of trade receivables* 22 25 4

Htb U FURRE
CRERE) - e~

HERMEYE - #sk
REBRE BB/ (BN

Impairment/ (write-back of impairment]

of other receivables, net* 23 (50) 99
Loss/(gain) on disposal and

write-off of ifems of property,

plant and equipment* (8,610) 2,904
HEMB AT AT - $8* Cain on disposal of subsidiaries, net* 40 (126) (112,852)
THETARFERTF - Fair value gains on derivative
TERERHEMZH* instruments - fransaction
not qualifying as hedge* (27,662) (5,302)
REWMEZ A THEES Changes in fair value of
investment properties 15 (23,215) [32,390)
—RIBE AR Z RFBME*  Impairment of an amount due
from an associate* 2 11
HRELERN 2 HEIA Rental income from operating
leases of machinery (10,562) (18,052
REMEESRA Rental income from
investment properties (5,483) (29,411)
REVZERMIESFRFELR  Direct operating expenses (including
HEKERX repairs and maintenance|
(BRAERE) arising from rentalearning
investment properties 829 5077
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8.

BRBLADER (&)

AEE 2 BHADERENSGIA)T
NEBERER - (&)

*

FReRCeRERABaERZIE
oSt o FE IE E WA RET
FREIN -

AEECAENMTESRRRERE
RN —TEREETE - ERERBT
AR ERRRMERZBETE
WARBRHIEEE  RZEH
AR ARBEB ENBANEBY A
" EBRRLERN BEeRZER
HEZ2HEINESREARAAE
1E4.5% 2 BEEFRIE - RD AR
RZBBEER_T—R"ERA=T
B/ WEEREEEE M
#)197,981,000% 7t 2 5858 -
B 192,408,000 TREE-T
—NE+ZA=+—RBLEEIE
Y -BEZT-—AR"F=ZA=+—
BLEFE > 455730008 T2
EEBEBEANIERY  EF
2,001,000 Lt ARG BE R Z
[SHERA]
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Contd)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(credifing):
(Contd)

*

These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or “Other income
and gains, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group has adopted an incentive scheme in favour of ifs executive
directors and senior management. The management incentive bonus is
calculated by reference to dividends declared by the Company and in
the event that there is a change in control of the Company, unvested
rights in this incentive scheme will vest immediately and no further grants
will be made but an aggregate payment equal to 4.5% of the value of
the Company will be made tfo the participants in that incentive scheme.
The change of the controlling shareholder of the Company, which was
completed on 30 June 2016, triggered an aggregate payment of
approximately HK$197,981,000 under the incenfive scheme, out of
which HK$192,408,000 was recorded as an expense for the period
ended 31 December 2016. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
total management incentive bonus of HK$5,573,000 was recorded
as an expense, out of which HK$2,091,000 was included in “Cost of
sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.



HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

EEME 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
B EMARR] - BAEDEEHIZE 383(1) Directors’ remuneration for the period ended 31 December 2016,
[a) ~ (b) ~ (c) o (f 16 K2 R (HE B2 28 B 4 disclosed pursuant fo the Listing Rules, section 383(1](a), (b], (c) and (f)
BB KRIE2BRERE_T—X of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
F+tZ A=+ HIBHRESHe W (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
Ik follows:
BZE—RF
mMA—HZ
—E-RF BE
+t=A=+—H —E-RF
LFERFE =A=1+—H
Period from HFE
1 April 2016 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
we Fees:
WITES Executive directors — —
FHITES Non-executive directors 124 =
BIUFHITES Independent non-executive directors 936 1,152
WTESCHMEE Other emoluments of executive directors:
BB - 28 REYH = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 16,054 38,364
EWIEA > Performance related bonuses * 153,926 4,458
RIREFFEMER Pension scheme contributions 42 54
171,082 44,028
* AARRTESL2HE—HREE - * Executive directors of the Company participated in an incentive scheme.
BERETE 2 E— S EREN Further details of the incentive scheme were disclosed in note 8 to the
EHREMTES financial statements.
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9. E=S:ME(E) 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

ENRENEUEEMIT :

The remuneration paid or payable fo each of the direcfors is as follows:

28
RENFE pidrNe
Salaries, A HES
allowances  Performance Pension
#&  and benefits related scheme it
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
FET FET FET FET FiE7
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
BZE-AFMA—-HE  Period from 1 April 2016 fo
ZE2-RE+ZA=1+-8 31 December 2016
JI2:5
T85! Executive directors:
R Mr. Zhao Quan? - - - = =
FRERES Mr. i Tongshuang® - = - - -
i e Mr. Fung Chiv Chak, Victor
) 'Mr. Fung’] - 8,298 96,204 14 104,516
BRELE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung - 3,182 28,861 14 32,057
ey S Mr. lau Kin Fai - 3,080 28,861 14 31,955
AFHSEE Mr. Liv Junchun? - = = = =
BEEES Mr. Fon Ning® - 765 - - 765
SOKERAS Mr. Meng Yongtoo® - 729 - - 729
- 16,054 153,926 42 170,022
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
AgHEE! Mr. Liv Junchun? 124 - - - 124
IRERES Mr. Wang Tianbing? - - - - -
Stuart Morrison Grant %46 Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant® - - - - -
BERLAS M. Justin Wit = - L - -
ERRRES M. Law Yiu Fat Richard® = L5 - = =
124 - - - 124

ANNUAL REPORT 2016




9.

EEME(E)

ENSENSUEEHENT : (£)

BZE-~EMA-HE
“E-RE+ZA=t-H
HEEE)

BUFATES:
SEERRE
EpA i

gyt
b i

st

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

9.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:

(Contd)
E147 R4l
RENHE Birg
Salaries, ENRA e
allowances  Performance Pension
% and benefits related scheme FoH
Fees in kind bonuses  confributions Total
FET FET FET FET FiET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Period from 1 April 2016 to
31 December 2016 [Contd)
Independent non-executive
directors;
Mr. Fan Chor Ho 234 - - - 234
Mr. Tse Man Bun 234 - - - 234
Mr. lung Chee Ming, George 234 - - - 234
Mr. Li Kit Chee 234 - - - 234
936 - - - 936
Total 1,060 16,054 153,926 42 171,082

F3; 2016
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9. EEMe(E) Q. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)
ENSENBUESMENT : (£) The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:
(Contd)
- 28
RENHE BiRe
Salaries, Eyuepal HE S
allowances  Performance Pension
#%  and benefits related scheme it
Fees in kind bonuses  contribufions Tofel

TET &L TET &L &L
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

HZZZF—7=A=1—H Yeorended 31 March 2016

JI%:3E;

HTES: Executive directors:

BEE Mr. Fung = 21,936 2,786 18 24,740

BRELE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung - 8,380 836 18 0234

ety Mr. Lau Kin Fai = 8,048 836 18 8,002

= 38,364 4,458 54 42876

FUTES ! Non-executive directors:

TRERES Mr. Wang Tionbing? - - - = =

Stuart Morrison Grant L4 ¢ Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant® = = = = =

BRAEE Mr. Yang Han Hsiong' - - S - =

BB M. Justin Wit = = - - -

ERRRES Mr. law Yiu Fat Richard? - - - - -

BUFHTES: Independent non-executive

directors:

BlEEE M. Fan Chor Ho 288 . - = 288

o Mr. Tse Man Bun 288 = = = 288

ETARE Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George 288 = 3 = 288

RS M. Li Kit Chee 288 = = = 288
1,152 - = = 1,172

@t Tofal 1,152 38,364 4,458 54 44,028
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ENSENSUEEHENT : (£)

‘ R ERHERRRERITES(3E
HITEZ)) R-F—AF-At++LR
B o
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s FREEEBE-TRFLA-TIA
REZERMTESR YE-T—RF
ToAZT - RERHERTES -

4 AEEREA T "FLA-TIA

EZTAFEMTIEET A _T—<F
A+ HEETARNITES -

2 BERAENSKBELRZERNTE
EORIESRFLASTABRSERC

g FRES A + Suart Morison Grant 44
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= RIERELATABER -
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HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016 —E—X¥+=-A=+—H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:

(Contd)

1

Mr. Yang Han Hsiang resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company ["Non-executive Director”| with effect from 17 February 2016.

Mr. Zhao Quan was appointed as an executive director of the Company
["Executive Director”) with effect from 22 December 2016.

Mr. Li Tongshuang was appointed as an Executive Director with effect
from 29 July 2016 and resigned with effect from 22 December 2016.

Mr. Liv Junchun was appointed as a Non-executive Director with effect
from 29 July 2016 and redesignated as an Executive Director with effect
from 22 December 2016.

Mr. Fan Ning and Mr. Meng Yongtao were appointed as Executive
Directors with effect from 29 July 2016.

Mr. Wang Tianbing, Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant, Mr. Jusfin Wai and Mr.
Law Yiu Fat Richard resigned as Non-executive Directors with effect from

29 July 2016.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to

waive any remunerafion during the period ended 31 December 2016.

F3; 2016
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10. AfumEH2EE

BE_Z—R"EtA=+—HILH
F AfUR=HEEER=-REZE
E_E-RF=ZA=1T—HILFE:
—REZF) HMeHFEHRN LXME
Q- BE-T-RE+-_A=1t—HL
HE - fIML(BE-T—R"F=A

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the period ended 31 December
2016 included three directors [year ended 31 March 2016: three
directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above.
Details of the remuneration for the period ended 31 December 2016
of the remaining two (year ended 31 March 2016: two) nondirector
highest paid employees are as follows:

=tT—HLEFE: MU FEERRH

BEZMeWT

R R EYAE
BREAL
RIREFTEIPR

Y FESREFCRESETRER *
8 - ARAEEE A E—SHBERE

REFE IR MIES

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

B-E—-RE
mMA—HZE
—E-RE BE
+t=A=+—-H —TRF
LFERE =A=+—H
Period from LHFE
1 April 2016 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,915 9,255
Performance related bonuses * 23,090 668
Pension scheme confributions 14 18
28,019 9,941

to the financial statements.

The non-director highest paid employees participated in an incentive
scheme. Further defails of the incentive scheme were disclosed in note 8



HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

10. AfuBEH2EE(E) 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont'd)
EUTHENEEAZ FEEHRRHEE The number of non-director highest paid employees whose remuneration
ABIT fell within the following bands is as follows:

BEAH
Numbers of employees
B2
mA—-HZ
—E-RE BE
+=RA=t-H —ERF
H#E =A=+—8
Period from IHFE
1 April 2016 1o Year ended
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
4,500,000 LE HK$4,500,000 to
5,000,000/ 7T HK$5,000,000 — ]
5,000,001 BLE HK$5,000,001 to
5,500,000t HK$5,500,000 — ]
13,500,001 ALE HK$13,500,001 to
14,000,000 7T HK$ 14,000,000 1 =
14,000,001 BLE HK$14,000,001 to
14,500,000 7T HK$ 14,500,000 1 -
2 2
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11. FriEH 11. INCOME TAX
BERANGRERBARBBEL 2 A5 Hong Kong profits tax has been provided af the rate of 16.5% [year
ERBAMZ 165 (BE_T—RF ended 31 March 2016: 16.5%) on the esfimated assessable profits
ZA=+—BIEFE:16.5%)E L& arising in Hong Kong during the period. Taxes on profits assessable
1 o B fo 3[R R RR A s A1) 2 BB elsewhere in the PRC have been calculated at the applicable tax rate
ERAEBRLEMR R ITERR K prevailing in the areas in which the Group operates.
B=2-1E
MA—-RZ
—E-REF S
+=R=t-H —ERF
JJ:,HE A =R E—I__ H
Period from IHFE
1 April 2016 1o Year ended
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
TET FAT
HK$000 HK$'000
ENEg - Current:
ABE FEHEMZ Provision for fax in respect of profit for the
PIRR - period/year:
FE PRC:
BB Hong Kong 43,875 48,947
Hiht[E Elsewhere 205,999 345,075
249,874 394,022
FEEREEE Overprovision in the prior years:
PE PRC:
BE Hong Kong (60) (79)
Hipih |2 Elsewhere (4,688) -
(4,748) (79)
BT A (M52 30) Deferred tax note 30) (18,485) 45,386
AR FE 2 BIAR X 85 Tofal tax charge for the period/year 226,641 439,329
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11. FRiS8L(4E)

BERRUAREREMBARAERR
Bt 2R E B R B 2 BRI AR 2
BERX BABRREFE 2 HBERX

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

. INCOME TAX (Contd)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the

sfatutory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and its

ZHERIT

BR A AR R

WEEM KA E 2R
TR EREE
THERERZRETE

st EF R 2 BNEARIA T fE
ZRAE

BARBA

AT HIRAIR %
SAEETEAMHERRZ
AR 2

BB EE
PRBEFEZHRER
RIERHIAEE

subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective fax rate is

as follows:
B-E-~%
mMA—BAZ
—E-RE HE
tZA=+—-H —TRF
1EEAR] =R=+—H
Period from IHFE
1 April 2016 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET &L
HK$°000 HK$ 000
Profit before tax 354,998 951,837
Tax at the statufory rates 69,588 163,422
Provision for land appreciation fax 117,068 207,458
Tax effect of land appreciation fax (7,150) 4,445
Adjustments in respect of current fax
of prior years (4,748) (79)
Income not subject to tax (6,078) (5,405)
Expenses not deductible for fax 62,936 40,998
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
profits of the Group's subsidiaries in
Mainland China (16,141) 33,067
Tax losses utilised from prior years (333) (9,809)
Tax losses not recognised 11,499 4,332
226,641 439,329

BAREBEERTETE 2BIERE Tax charge af the Group's effective rate
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12. RS 12. DIVIDENDS
B-E-~F
mA—-HZ
—E-RE
+=ZB=+—H BHZE
LEER —TRF
Period from  =HA=+—H
1 April IHFE
2016 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FiET FIET
HK$000 HK$ 000
AR EREIRARE Dividends paid during the period/year:
BE_T—"¥=H=1—H Final in respect of the financial year ended

LB E R EAAAR S 31 March 2016 - Nil

-B(HE_T—1F [vear ended 31 March 2015:

ZR=+—HILFE: HK15.0 cents

FhEAER15.0%4) per ordinary share| - 131,200
FHIRE-E|(BEZZT—RF  Inferim - Nil (year ended

ZR=+—HILFE : 31 March 2016: HK20.0 cents

FIE WA 20.0%41) per ordinary share| — 174,933

- 306,133
BRIRNAREIRE Proposed final dividend:
AR B — EiRERE10.0 Final = HK10.0 cents [year ended

Bl(HEE=E—RF 31 March 2016: Nil)

ZRA=+—HILEFE : &) per ordinary share 113,416 =
AERRFRN 2 KRS BEARDR] The proposed final dividend for the period is subject o the approval of
BRENEBRRRBFEREG LK - the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
ZEMBRRIL BRI ENRERE These financial statements do nof reflect the final dividend payable.
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13. ROAFEBRBRREEZREF

BREARRFTBEARR R L BRK
REEHZE-_T—R"F+=-_A=1+—
H IF 51 % A 134,050,000 Jo(E
E_E-RFZA=Z+—HLEE:
396,874,000 0) R EIRBE BT 2T
B INEFHEO77 751,359 % (&
E_E-RFZA=Z+—HLEE:
874,665,903 %)5HE -

BE_Z—R"E+A=+—HILHHE
FBE-Z-R"E=-A=+t—HLHF
B AREYECETECHELR
H§ o

13.

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the period ended 31 December 2016 affributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$134,050,000 (year ended 31
March 2016: HK$396,874,000), and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 977,751,359 (year ended 31 March 2016:
874,665,903 in issue during the period.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
period ended 31 December 2016 and year ended 31 March 2016.

F3; 2016
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14. 9% - #BERRE

ZE-ETZB=1-H 31 December 2016

A Cos:
81 At beginning of period
hE Additions
e /s Disposals/wiileolf

ERTHEME(W1S)  Trander to investment

properies [nofe 13)

EfaBf Surplus on revaluation
[E 51 % Exchange realignment
R-B—E
TZA=1-H At 31 December 2016
B RAE - Accumuloted depreciation
and impaiment
1) At beginning of period
ARG Depreciation provided
during the period
e /s Disposals/wiileolf
EfEE Wiiteback on revoluation
[ A% Exchange relignment
RZE—7F
+ZA=+-H At 31 Decenber 2016
REAE Net carrying amount:
St S
tZA=t-A At 31 December 2016

RZB-7E=A=1-A A 31 March 2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

&R AR

e kE ik

THREF  Equipment  Fumitre AE B WEEE
lond ond and and Motor Motor ~ Leasehold at
buldings  machinery fitres ~ vehicles yacht  improvements Tofal
FEr FEr Fhr FEn FEr A FEr
HKS000  HKS000  HKSUOO0  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSOO0O
217,348 964,183 4313 19,138 6,098 17,811 1,228,891
- 16,035 1,401 2579 - 3221 23,236
- 274 (36) (1,621) - - (50931
77 - - - - -
5,245 - - - - - 5,245
e ) (/7] _ B2 18]
215285 93071 5,661 19,674 6,098 20710 1,198,089
38,687 821,395 3361 12,851 6,098 13,004 895,486
5914 46,667 540 1,402 - 2,293 36,816
AV (34) (1,010 - - 50,169
) _ - - _ - )
(39) (209) 8) (314) - (178 (748)
4283 818728 3,859 12929 6,098 15209 901,106
170,952 111,983 1,802 6,745 = 5501 296,983
178,661 142,788 952 6,267 - 4717 333,405




14. ¥ - BBERRBE)

ZE-7EZA=1-B 31 March2016

RA: Cost
) At beginning of year
AE Addifons
e/ Disposols /writeoff
HEHBAT Disposal of subsidiaries
(FrzE 40(0) R lc) [note 40(b] ond [d]
[ 0% Exchange realignment

RZE-AEZA=1t-H A 31 March 2016

ZHIERAE : Accumulated depreciafion
and impaiment:
) At beginning of year
RERMERR Depreciafion provided
during the year
HE /i Disposals /writeoff
HEHBAT Disposal of subsidliaries
(Pit£E 400) R c) [note 400b) and [d)
[E 5% Exchange realignment

RZE-RFZA=T-B A 31 March 2016

REAE Net carrying amoun'
RIZ-RE=A=t-B A 31 Mach 2016

RIZ-RE=A=t-H A 31 Mach 2015

AEREETHHRET - RELESE
BERTRITERAKERRETRITE
B2 B (PEE 29) -

AEBEETREREFRELERO L
MFE=D - - THREHBENNE
WRMIEE 35(a)

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

RER  HRR

e %E il

THEEF  Equipment Fumiture g BE DERE
Land and ond ond Molor Moo leasehold hy
buldings ~ machinery fixtures vehicles yach  improvements Tolol

TEL TAL TEL TEL TAL TEL TAL
HS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKEO0 HKSO00  HKSO00 K000

217530 973,39 12,603 20,040 6,008 18784 1248514

- 26,142 193 1,447 - 2472 30,254
- (34,714) 2,164 (2,100 - (1983 [40961]
- (438) 6,372) - - (1,243] (8,095]
(182] (200) (7] (249) - 217) (861]

217,348 964,183 4313 19,138 6,098 17811 1,228,891

30734 780935 11,271 13,223 6,008 14286 856,547
7,980 67,329 601 1,807 - 2,236 79,953
- 26,316] 2,159) (1,997] - (1983 (32,45

- (384) (6,349 - - (1,231] (7,964

(27) (169 (3] (182 - [214) [595]

38,687 821,39 3,361 12,851 6,098 13,094 895,486

178661 142,788 952 0,287 - 4717 333,405

186796 192,464 1,392 0817 - 4498 391967

Certain of the Group's land and buildings, equipment and machinery
were pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted
fo the Group (note 29).

Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary defails of which are
included in note 35(a) to the financial statements.
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—E-RF ZEAF
+=A=t-B =ZA=t—A
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FiBT FIET
HK$000 HK$ 000
RE/ 2 BREE Carrying amount af beginning of period/year 172,636 618,317
ERERAMRIEE 2 W3 (M5 20) Transfer from properties held for sale (note 20) - 42,155

ERAHEANMEAWMEMIFE14)  Tonsfer from an owneroccupied
property (note 14) 7,171 -
HEKB LR (MEE40b) &(c))  Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(b) and (c)) - (488,722)
NEEZE(HES) Fair value changes (note 8) 23,215 32,390
B 50 % Exchange realignment (13,772 (31,504
RE/ R 2 BREE Carrying amount af end of period/year 189,250 172,636

R-E—RXE+-_A=+—HE-Z
—NFEZRA=+t—H AEERENE
BEMNFBEAEEEDE - AAF]
EZRBREMELNE  FEKEAR
ETRENERBENE - AEEK
BMERBEIZEESERYEMLER
BEETE E AR AR AR EME
R-ZE—R"E+_A=t+—HEHHE
£189,250,0008 (=2 —X~F=A
=1+—H:172,636,00087C) c X1
AESEFERERMINIEEMEE
REBWE ZINFEE - B ZIZER
EMSAE - 28 BUMNURESD
REBEZE - AAREZTHEMAR
BPERFEEVBREETHERG
BERZREEEREGEMETR o

BREMEDNRELEAHBETE=
7o BEHE i E— S HBE R ER
RMTEE35(a) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

The Group's investment properties as af 31 December 2016 and 31
March 2016 consist of commercial properties in Mainland China. The
directors of the Company have defermined that the investment properties
were commercial properfies, based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of each property. The Group's invesiment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2016 based on valuations performed by Vigers
Appraisal and Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professionally
qualified property valuers, at HK$189,250,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$172,636,000). Each year, the Company's directors decide
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criferia include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Company's direcfors have discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results twice
a year when the valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased fo third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 35(a) to
the financial statements.



15. REWME(E)

RFESRFEE

TRIINAKERENE C AVEFE

SR

UTIRE 2 EEH
AVEE

[SERYES

WTBA 2t
AFEHE

[SEYES

Recurring fair value
measurement for:

Commercial properties

Recurring fair value
measurement for:

Commercial properties
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Fair valve hierarchy

. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's investment properiies:

TR
HE
(E1/8)
Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)
FHET
HK$000

RZE-RE+ZA=1-H
ERAUT8BTEBATE
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2016 using

EAUHE BEARAUHE
BAYE WARE
(%2/8) (3[E)
Significant  Significant
observable unobservable

inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
FiEx FEx

HK$000 HK$°000

— 189,250

et

Total
FET
HK$000

189,250

GRS
wE
(B15E)
Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(level 1)
AT
HK$ 000

RZE—RF=A=1+—H
FRATEETEQAFE
FOH vo|ue measurement

as af 31 March 2016 using

ERAEBR EXTAEHE
AR BARIE
(F28E) (£3/)

Significant  Significant
observable  unobservable

inputs inputs
(Llevel 2) (Level 3]
FAT FAT

HK$'000 HK$ 000

= 172,636

mst
Total
FAET
HK$ 000

172,636
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15. REWXR(E) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

RFEZREE(E)

RAHEA F1BEE2BZ ML E
TIRAFENEEYR  BEIBLESE
ABEL(EHE-Z—A F=A=+—

Fair valve hierarchy (Cont'd)

During the period, there were no fransfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and level 2 and no transfers info or out of Level 3 (year

ended 31 March 2016: Nil).

146

AIEFE &) -
BRERAEIBATESAREL A TE Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of
ATEZHR - the fair value hierarchy:
[GE3/ES FEME
Commercial  Residential
properties properties
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$000
R-_ZE—AFMA—-HZEAE Carrying amount at 1 April 2015 103,042 515,275
BRAREHRHEE YR Transfer from properties held for sale 42,155 -
HERBAR Disposal of subsidiaries = (488,722)
~NHEEE Fair value changes 32,390 =
B 5 82 Exchange realignment (4,951) (26,553)
RZZE-—RE=A=1—H Carrying amount af 31 March 2016 and
RZZE—RFNA—HZKEE 1 April 2016 172,636 -
BRABEANEAZYE Transfer from an owner-occupied property 7,171 -
NHEES Fair value changes 23,215 -
b 3 % Exchange realignment (13,772 —
RZF—A"F+ZA=1+—H
ZFRHEE Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 189,250 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016




. REWXGE) 15.

R FEZREE (E)

W RREMEGEEMRAGETARE
BRABBEIME

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair valve hierarchy (Cont'd)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs
fo the valuation of invesiment properties:

EATAEE
BWARE
tER* Significant &8 (IETIE)
Valuation fechniques unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)
ZE-RE “ERF
t=A=+-H =A=t-H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
RS DA E S ES BRIEE ARMERBLX -50% £ 9% S1%Z-10%
Commercial properties Direct comparison Property-specific (-27%) (-35%)
in Mainland China approach adjustment rafe

AEEREMEZ ATEDNERERL
BE - 2ERHAMSRALBENE D
HMEETRAEBREM X EIHE
plrueBemE - g BENEEE
REMETE - AFEMAERRBELERHY
=HEERRFEESNTIEREA
Y2 LAEEAE -

The fair value of the Group's invesiment properties is determined using
the direct comparison approach by reference fo the recent sales price of
comparable properties in the open market, adjusted for size, location,
floor level and quality of the Group's invesiment properties compared fo
the recent sales. The fair value measurement is posifively correlated fo
the unobservable input that the higher the adjusiment rafe will result in o
higher fair value.

F3; 2016
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16.

17.

BRPYE 16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
e _\i ZE-RF
TZRA=1—- =A=t+—~H
31 ecember 31 March
2016 2016
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$000
8/ EETE Balance at beginning of period/year 1,772,959 1,275,554
ABEFERE Additions during the period/year 432,348 575,141
BESRAMREE 2 (M 20) Transfer to properties held for sale [note 20) (2,074,232) (30,840)
BERMEFE (HEE7) Interest capitalised (note 7) 6,556 5,364
i 5% Exchange realignment (123,345) (52,254)
8/ FRETE Balance at end of period/year 14,286 1,772,959

— R N TS 17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

ZE—TE ZERE
+ZA= =A=+—H
31 ecember 31 March
2016 2016
FEr &L
HK$000 HK$'000
RIEEERFE Share of net assets = —
—fHEE AR R Amount due from an associate 386 384
386 384
R ORE less: Impairment (38¢) (384)

—ABERRZRIAELR 2880

EETFIB AR o fixed terms of repayment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interestfree and has no



17.

—EBE N RER(E) 17.
B RmZFBmT

e 81T
Particulars
2% of issued
Name shares held
NERERRAF EERCL
Turbo Dragon Invesiment Limited ~ Ordinary share

. AHHERE 18.

REMBARKE - LA

7JL/\\_? NE+Z H +—HB @
= QOOO/% T(ZE—RF=A
=+—H:1,197,0008& )2 X LT

%N&ﬁ?ﬁﬁizﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ ARAE
AFEEFZEEEKX EFRR/EA

FEEAASENE - ARBESRITH
REHE -

Unlisted equity investment, at cost

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT
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INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Contd)

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

AL B
MR, FrEREZRA DL
TR &R Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ interest
registration attributable TEXK
and business fo the Group Principal activity
A3 —ERF
+=A=+-B =A=t+—H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
BB 50 50 REERK

Hong Kong Invesiment holding

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

e /_i —E—RF
+=HB= —A=+—H
31 ecember 1 March
2016 2016

FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
1,112 1,197

As at 31 December 2016, an unlisted equity investment with a carrying
amount of HK$1,112,000 (31 March 2016: HK$1,197,000) was
fated at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that
its fair value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to
dispose of it in the near future.

F3; 2016
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19. #E

T REAM

20. FHHEMEE2YE

/4

BREREAME(MES)

BREERTYFE
(MfEE16)

8/ FRHEZNE

BE 5 %

8,/ F

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

19. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Spare parts and others

20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

At beginning of period,/year

Transfer fo investment properties (nofe 15) -

Transfer from properties under

development (nofe 16)

Properties sold during the period/year

Exchange realignment

At end of period/year

Limited
ZE-RE —EREF
T=ZR=+—-B =ZA=1—H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
558 642
15,953 22,909
16,511 23,551
—E-REF —E-REF
+=B=+-B =A=t+-A
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FEx FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
302,596 646,659
[42,155)
2,074,232 30,846
(496,729) (313,263)
2,904 (19,491)
1,883,003 302,596




22.

FEWN E 5 BRI R B AR E & 22.

ARBREABITREEFFTEER
R-BTEREPZFO—REEHR
SORA(EURE SRS - HERAKE
EEELESR - BER LXK
AEE 2 R E SRR R EUIRE S R
RETREFER  HWHEEERRB
REFRZIER - AEEYERZFER
RAETANERIRSEMES - BKE
PRI NERRE ST HRE
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. BEEY 21. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

ZE-RE —TRE
+=ZA=+-B =A=+—H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
BPEBENIRIRN Amounts due from customers for contract works 295,893 116,625
REFEBANTIRZIE Amounts due to customers for contract works (419,304) (660,898)
(123,411) (544,273)

FREE 2 B R INBIE R F R Contract costs incurred plus recognised
AHEHREMNRE HRER profits less recognised losses to date 12,856,069 12,207,275
B B FEUGEFEBR TR less: Progress billings received and receivable ~ (12,979,480)  (12,751,548)
(123,411) (544,273

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES

The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry

standards. The average normal credit periods offered fo trade customers

other than for refention receivables are within 30 days, and are subject

fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and

the fact that the Group's trade and retention receivables relate fo a large

number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration

of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit

enhancements over its frade and retention receivable balances. Trade

and refention receivables are non-interestbearing.

—E-RE —E-RF

+=ZBA=+—H =A=1t—H

31 December 31 March

2016 2016

FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000

FEWE 5 8RR EUUR E & Trade and retention receivables 797,907 727,634
HE Impairment (29) (397)
797,878 727,243
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22.

W E 5 R R BN RE ()

FEWE SR M R ARE & B HE R
— BB RRIFIAY,284,0005& T(=
E-—RFE=ZA=+—H:572,000%
) BEEFEEGRREL TAEET

NEZRHMMRERESE  REES
BRRBERR R TIT -

22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Included in the trade and refention receivables is an amount due from a
related company of HK$7,284,000 (31 March 2016: HK$572,000),
which is repayable on credit terms similar to those offered fo the major
customers of the Group.

An aged analysis of the frade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of provision, is as follows:

—B-REF —TRF
TZRA=+-R =ZA=1-H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FEr &L
HK$000 HK$000

FEWE ZBRN Trade receivables:
Q0 HA Within 90 days 525,746 415,191
Q1EHZE180H 91 to 180 days 102 5,205
181 HE360H 181 to 360 days 481 3,535
360 A £ Over 360 days 10,392 12,619
536,721 436,550
FEWRE & Retention receivables 261,157 290,693
797,878 727,243

R-E—XE+-_A=+—H&EA
200,251,000 (=2 —~"F= A
=+—H :240,586,000/& ) 2 FEU
RESEHENRERRE T —EAR
qE

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Retention receivables, amounting to HK$200,251,000 as at 31
December 2016 (31 March 2016: HK$240,586,000), are expected
fo be recovered within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.



u+)\iLFH&%%ﬁE R BIE R
29000/%713( E-R"F=ZR=+—
B : 391,000 7T) 2 5L &R e K E 5
FR K 1 L B 8 A BRI 4885 69,000
/% T ZE-R"E=ZRAR=+—H:
391,000%7) - EREHERKE S
BRERRHBRNE RPER - B
BRZERP 2 RR a2 5k -
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22. EREZSRIRERREEE) 22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
FEWE ZERZURERE 2 2BMT : The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

:g__\i TE—RF

+=-A= =A=+—H

31 ecember 31 March

2016 2016

FET &L

HK$000 HK$000

iy At beginning of period/year 391 387

BRERRESE(KE7) Impairment losses recognised [nofe 7) 25 4

AR ez B SH R Amount written off as uncollectible (387) -

B TR At end of period/year 29 391

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables
of HK$29,000 (31 March 2016: HK$391,000] is a provision for
individually impaired trade receivables with a gross carrying amount
before provision of HK$69,000 (31 March 2016: HK$391,000). The
individually impaired frade receivables relate fo customers that were in
financial difficulties and the receivables from these customers are not
expected to be fully recoverable.

F3; 2016
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22. BRWESERRRERRES () 22. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
ARIK L RBEET T REL EKE S The aged analysis of the frade and refention receivables that are not
R RERRES 2 RieTNT individually nor collectively considered fo be impaired is as follows:

ZE-REF —ERF

t=ZRA=+—-B ZA=1+—H

31 December 31 March

2016 2016

TET FAT

HK$000 HK$000

REBHTERE Neither past due nor impaired 691,725 669,812

ERH1AE90HR 1 to 90 days past due 95,178 36,615

BRI BE270H 91 to 270 days past due 439 4,896

2iaEmE270 More than 270 days past due 10,496 15,920

797,838 727,243

SEEBHTERNE R IREAEY
BIMENELNTRAEFER -8
HEYERE 2 BRGURE RS BALK
BAEERIXHCENBYIEFPEH -
KEBELR  ARRESRR @R
FEEEYBREREY ALFNHE AR
2ERE - B EN B ST
BERE - BWE SRR ERRE S
ZIREEEANFHERS -
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Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate fo a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good frack record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are sfill considered fully recoverable. The
carrying amounts of the trade and refention receivables approximate fo
their fair values.



23. ANFUR « A ERHEMEWRIR
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

ZE-RE ZEAF
t=ZR=+-B =ZA=1+—H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
WEEE - e Deposits for acquisition of items of property,

RIEEE 27 % plant and equipment 1,994 -
BRNFELEE Prepayments and deposits 53,137 52,951
HAtb FEURIE Other receivables 23,570 236,192
wRE less: Impairment (3,888) (4,215)

74,813 284,928
B RERERBEEL less: Prepayments, deposits and
BRNFE other receivables
R oA U IR classified as non-current assets (4,143) (1,3806)
70,670 283,542
Hith SRR ERE s BT The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables are as
follows:
—E-XE —E-RF
+=ZA=1+—H =A=1+—H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
H,/E4) At beginning of period/year 4,215 4,292
ERRREEE - FB(HEE8)  Impairment losses recognised, net (note 8) - 99
REEERE - FE(MEES) Impairment losses written back, net (note 8) (50) S
P 0 R Exchange realignment (277) (176)
5,/ R At end of period/year 3,888 4,215

FRE2BRIE 3,888,000 (=%
—NE=ZA=+—H:4215000%
7C) B EUERIRSN - BB EL &R
HASURIE - Mt A LRz eREE
BRI B A 408k 2 FRTIR AR -

Except for other receivables of HK$3,888,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$4,215,000) which were fully impaired, none of the above assets
is either past due or impaired and the financial assefs included in the
above balances relafe to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

F3; 2016
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24. fTEEmIA 24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
e _\$ —EBRF
T=A=t- =A=+—H
31 ecember 31 March
2016 2016
FiET FIET
HK$°000 HK$000
RN EB=H Cross currency swap 39,721 8,533
AKECA L -EARXXEREHS  UE The Group entered into a cross currency swap to manage its exchange
BHEEXRER - ZX XN E¥RETIEE rate exposures. This cross currency swap is not designated for hedging
TSR R) - WIRATFEGTARS ° purpose and is measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes
FEEHITETAZ AT FELZE 2 BF in the fair value, nef, of the non-hedging derivative amounting to a gain
27,662,000 8T (BE_T—RF=H of HK$27,662,000 [year ended 31 March 2016: HK$5,302,000)
=+—BIEFE :5302,000%7T) T were credited fo the statement of profit or loss during the period. The
SFAHRZIERRAN - ZSeMTAY carrying amount of the financial instrument was the same as its fair
FHEEEAFERS - LAiTASR value. The above transaction involving a derivative financial instrument
TEMPRRGE—REERIFAR was conducted with a creditworthy financial institufion with no recent
MY BEOEL 2 CRBEET - history of default.
25. RERBITHEFREHFR 25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND TIME DEPOSITS
— _\ﬁ —EBRF
TZA=t- =A=t—-A
Hizt 31 ecember 31 March
Notes 2016 2016
FET FIET
HK$°000 HK$000
EHE Time deposits:
—HbEBER — other time deposits (a) 1,246,496 1,013,868
— BTN — sfructured deposits (b) 280,790 289,721
TEHIF AR Total time deposits 1,527,486 1,303,589
RE RRITHER Cash and bank balances (a) 330,962 502,830
At Total 1,858,448 1,806,419
AT SIS HEHE - Denominated in:
AR Renminbi (“RMB”) 546,132 536,206
BT HK$ 1,311,373 1,260,250
BT Macao patacas ("MOP’) 493 9,232
Hip B Other currencies 450 731
1,858,448 1,806,419
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25. BERBITEFRERFR(E)

ARETATERMABRAEMES &
- ARE R B A 2 SMNEE IR R K 45
B EERNEERRTE  AREEE

BBERETINERT 2 IR1T

BA

RERBREMLER -

et -

(a)

(bl

ROIFEFEEARTERNEFE 2
FEMERRANE - EMERAET
RZEFER - M F7RE3EAZ
Z-REFZA=Z+—H:NTF7RE
R2R)ITE  RIAKEZAERS
FBRME - LB B2 T HFHRAE
REFE - RITRTREFRFRNIH
WEENES 2 FBEEZRIT -

HEUEIAAEETHER 2T
HMER BBRERAIE - EHF
HEBETRZEFRAR - N F30K
ERR(ZE-—R"F=ZA=1t—HR:
NFIAREMUR)ITE - BHBE
REGEERER=EAKIH2FR
34,237 0008 L(ZE—RF=A
=+—H:42,603000%7T) - &1
HESMERERE TR T A E
LEHMED - ARETRBEREIE
BRARRAREDR -

25.

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016 —E—X¥+=-A=+—H

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND TIME DEPOSITS (Contd)

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under

Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and

Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other

currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Nofes:

(a)

(bl

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between
7 days to 3 months {31 March 2016: 7 days to 32 days) depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and eam interest at
the respective fime deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The structured deposits are time deposits with fixed maturity dates and are
stated of amortised cost. The deposits are made for varying periods of
between 30 days to 92 days (31 March 2016: 14 days to 94 days).
Included in the balance are deposits of HK$34,237,000 (31 March
2016: HK$42,603,000) of which the original maturity is more than
three months when acquired. The inferest rates on the siructured deposits
fluctuated based on changes in the currency exchange rate between
the United States dollars ["'US$") and HK$. The Group uses structured
deposits primarily fo enhance the refurn on investment.

F3; 2016
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26. BRNEZRN - BNREESRE
BE

NERERFHE  BNESRINESH

26.

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

An aged analysis of the frade payables as at the end of the reporting

RZEROMIT : period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
ZE-RE —E—RE
+=ZB=+—H —A=+—H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FEr FET
HK$000 HK$000

ERNESEN Trade payables:

Q0HR Within 90 days 334,403 193,460
Q1HE180H 91 to 180 days 33 273
180 HM k£ Over 180 days 347 531
334,783 194,264
ERRES Retention payables 157,899 190,870
FERT /8 Accruals 484,984 253,087
977,666 639,121
W DTEAERBEE BT FIE Less: Accrual classified as non-current liabilities - (4,387)
977,666 634,734

ENESERFNENREEHARE -
—REFHMA/NTAE -

27. HMEMNFOR - EREIERER

TR

HipEAFR - BRI RIEKIAER
RENBRAME(EE) BT 5% Mg
AR ERRE 104,598,000 7 7T (K
i39) e

HitRNFA(MERE LR RN R(E)D
RRE  FHEFBA—ER -
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27.

The frade and retention payables are non-interestbearing and are
normally seftled on 90-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS
IN'ADVANCE

Included in other payables, deposits received and receipt in advance
is a consideration payable of HK$104,598,000 related to the
acquisition of remaining 5% equity inferest in TFHKL (nofe 39).

Other payables, excluding the above mentioned consideration payable,
are nonrinterestbearing and have an average term of one month.



28.

29.

EWET &

BEURIEEREFRRTOEREAOR
RARAREHEENFTHEANRAR
FPREZF]E - AEERYENERR
HERENE - ANERPIIARHN
HURRERERNR - BPERAK
B fEE - ARERAZZELH

HARRE °

MERTEE

v

BITER

RER:
BITER
HHEH

BITEEER

Unsecured:
Bank loans

Secured:
Bank loans

Instalment loans

Total bank borrowings

28.

29.

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

31 December 2016 —E—X¥+=-A=+—H

Deposits received represented the down payments received from

cusfomers upon signing the pre-sale confracts of properties under

development and sale contracts of properties held for sale of the Group.

The Group conducted the pre-sale of properties when they were sfill

under development. As contracted with customers, deposits were paid

fo the Group upon signing the pre-sale contracts. Such amounts held by

the Group are nonvinterestbearing.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

—E-E+ZR=1-H B FZA=1T-H
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
BRFI= ERFE
Effective Effective

interest rate

(%

3.23.9 20172018

Eill FiEr

Maturity — HK$ 000
396,543

2.3 20172031 78,667
78,667

475,210

inferest rate HR

% Maturity

2.340 20162018

2.7 20162017
1.9 20162031

TR
HK$ 000

768,993

6,100
81,853

87,953

856,946

F3; 2016
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29. MIBRITIEE(E)

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

BIETSIEE A7
AR THIERENEER
ZIRITEE

R—F R IRE K

FF

F=FEERF
(BEEEMEF)

BRAF

pEAAHME  RZF
=t—B AEEESAEREERER
Rz RITER 2,260,000/ TLEFHA
BN BRITRE ji"*ﬁi%f?—ilﬂ

FIRBRER 2 EIRTT

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

—RF=A

—=— —\i ZE-RF
t ﬂ£+ _H +—A
ecember 1 March
2016 2016
FEr FET
HK$000 HK$'000
Analysed info:
Bank borrowings repayable:
Within one year or on demand 127,777 198,568
In the second year 276,812 199,869
In the third to fifth
years, inclusive 12,786 398,840
Beyond five years 57,835 59,669
475,210 856,946
Portion due within one year,
classified as current liabilities (127,777) (198,568]
long term portion 347,433 658,378

one year or on demand.

2 Group's bank loans in the amount o

For the purpose of the above analysis, as at 31 March 2016, the
f HK$2,260,000 containing a
repayment on demand clause were included within current interest-
bearing bank borrowings and analysed info bank loans payable within



29. MERITHEEE)

BRERTERZHBHR - R-F—R
FZA=1—H HERTERZE
BESER: AR —FANRERE
F.2196,308,0008 T ARE=
Fx112202,129,000# T : ARE
—FEFIF(ERERME) N2
398,840,000 7T : RRAFIA F X ff
2 59,669,000 7T, °

RZE-—X"F+ZA=+—8 £&
BzEARMBROTEEDHEREER
169,061,000 T(ZE—-—RE=A
=t—B:@KEERI74,895000
BB LM RET - R LK)
B L BT (M 14) (R -

bt - RRREHEE THB ARG
ZIEERERERMTE ) - HE
HCEBHZARAR(HEDRAELR
AETHEARZESRR) a5
BREEGE 2 RITRERMEALR -

SEMARTEESRIPHN R
CRITEEZREERE N FEMNE

off cm B

o

AR B RITERIABTLAE °
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31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Contd)

Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, as at 31 March
2016, the amounts repayable in respect of the bank loans were:
HK$196,308,000 payable within one year or on demand;
HK$202,129,000 payable in the second year; HK$398,840,000
payable in the third to fifth years, inclusive; HK$59,669,000 payable
beyond five years.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's secured bank borrowings were
secured by cerfain of its land and buildings note 14] with a carrying
amount of HK$169,061,000 (31 March 2016: certain of its land
and buildings, equipment and machinery with carrying amounts of

HK$174,895,000).

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted fo certain of its subsidiaries (note 37/al).
Mr. Fung, who is a beneficial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of
the Company through Fortunate Pool limited (“Fortunate Pool”), also
provided personal guarantees in respect of borrowing facilities granted
fo these subsidiaries.

All of the bank borrowings of the Group bear inferest at floating inferest
rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their
fair values.

The Group's bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

F3; 2016
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W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—H

30. IEFERIR 30. DEFERRED TAX
RABRE/ FER - BEREEERE The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the period/
EZ2FIT ¢ year are as follows:
FEEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities
B
BHEH

A WERS?
KREYE  Allowance in

Revaluation excess of bl

of investment relafed  Withholding st

properties  depreciation faxes Total

TAT FAT TET TET

HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

RZZ-—RFMHA—H Al Apil 2015 (110,986 (11,034 (101,297) (223,317)

FRRBEERFTA  Deferred tax credited/(charged)

(k%) 2 IRAE o the statement of profit or loss

BB (M) during the year [note 11) (10,048) 3,074 (33,967) [40,941)

s EAHER R Withholding tax paid on
[z BRIz repatriation of eamings from

BHH subsidiaries in Mainland China = = 25,789 25,789
HEMBAR Disposal of subsidiaries

(Bt 2E 40(b) & (c)) [note 40(b) and (c)) 88,062 - - 88,062
bEE 3% 8% Exchange realignment 5,887 = 4216 10,103
R-E—XRE

ZRA=+—Bk At 31 March 2016 and

—Z-R"EWA—A 1 April 2016 (27,085 (7,960) (105,259) (140,304
IR BE R A Deferred tax credited/(charged)

(%) Z o the statement of profit or loss

EEBIEEETD) during the period (note 11) (6,402) 1,596 16,141 11,335
HMANEEER Deferred fax charged fo the asset

il revaluation reserve during

EFERIR the period (1,395) - - (1,395)

LR BRI E AR Withholding tox paid on
B 2 & A S repafriation of eamings from

ZTEHH subsidiaries in Mainland China - - 14,209 14,209
R Exchange realignment 2,249 - 5,973 8,222
R_BaNE

(== At 31 December 2016 (32,633) (6,364) (68,934) (107,933)
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W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

30. EEBIIE(E) 30. DEFERRED TAX (Contd)
BEHEEE Deferred tax assets
+ HhIEE
BH
Provision
for land
appreciation
tax
T
HK$ 000
NZZE—hFMNA—H At 1 April 2015 55,829
FRARBRRTRK Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or loss
ZEEBIEAEETD) during the year (nofe 11) (4,445)
B AR Exchange realignment (2,251)
RZZE—R"FE=A=+—H At 31 March 2016 and
RZZE—RFMA—H 1 April 2016 49133
HRNEERETA Deferred tax credited fo the statement of profit or loss during
ZIEERBE (M) the period [note 11) 7,150
B 5 3% Exchange realignment (3,827)
RZZ—R"E+=ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2016 52,456
ANEBREBELZHREERE The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$286,058,000
286,058,000 T(ZE—XF=A (31 March 2016: HK$238,457,000) that are available indefinitely
=+—H :238,457,0005%7T) « ATA for offsefting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
VEmERR BRI SY H IR 1R Y A Bl 2 A K losses arose. Deferred tox assefs have not been recognised in respect
I H o RHIEA IR WEBA TR of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
EA VoS ERIf e BEILR A making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
BE  BYERRSEM AN LR IEES profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
BRARETAIBE
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31 December 2016 ZZE—XR"F+=-A=+—H
30. ELEMIE(E)

REFBEEXAEHE(TERAEHR
%] RPBIRALRSNE R E A E
IMREET IR BB BB 10% B
B ZBRER-_FTN\F-A—RE
ARUERN - ETLF+-A=1—
AZ&RELZZN - i E R EEIN
RAZEMERZERITARARE © A
AR AR 2 BMBREB R - Fit - K
SEABRER BRI 2 B R
REH—ETN\F-A-ARELZEF
ik 2 BB B TRIOH -

ARANRN FEBR 2 REL EERFMA

30. DEFERRED TAX (Contd)

Pursuant fo the Corporate Income Tax ["CIT") law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared 1o foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to eamings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a fax frealy between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group s therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by ifs subsidiaries established in Mainland China

in respect of eamings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching fo the payment of

BhRR - dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
31. A 31. SHARE CAPITAL
B Shares
“E-RE “TRF
+=ZHB=+—H —A=+—H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FEx FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
ETE - Authorised:
2,000,000,000 f% &h& 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
E{EO. 108 T2 Rk HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
BRIEER Issued and fully paid:
1,134,165,903 I 1,134,165,903 (31 March 2016:
(Z2E—R"F=A=+—8": 874,665,903
874,665,903 %) ordinary shares
BREEO. 0BT ERE of HK$0.10 each 113,416 87,466

ANNUAL REPORT 2016




31.

B (&) 31.

R (&)
ARBRAZ ZEHEMT -

RZZ-1FMA-H AT Apil 2015

BREHARHS Transfer fo confributed surplus

RZF—"E=A=1t—B A3 March 2016 ond
BoE-XERA-B 1 Aui 2016

BIR M (M) Issue of shares (note)

RIDETTHX Share issue expenses

RZE—A"F+ZA=1t—HB A 31 December 2016

GEE

BE-T-"F+_HA=t—RHiIH#HE" 2
RARBEFMR4.0878 T %17 259,500,000
Bif ReRELBEHBRAA) A
1,058,760,000% T °

BRE

ARFIBRER & 2 BN HER
Pt 32

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

Shares (Contd)

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as follows:

BEfT RIVEER

ko# A B Share
Number of Share premium act
shares in issue capital account Total
TET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
874,665,903 87,466 563,861 651,327
- - 563,861) (563,861)
874,605,903 87,466 - 87,466
259,500,000 25,950 1,032,810 1,058,760
- - (660) (660)
1,134,165,903 113,416 1,032,150 1,145,566

Note:
During the period ended 31 December 2016, 259,500,000 shares were

issued for cash at o subscription price of HK$4.08 per share for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,058,760,000.

Share options

Defails of the Company's share option scheme are included in note 32
o the financial statements.
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2. BRETE

RZE-_FN\ANR  ERERH—
BERESE( - F B
2] ARAKERINEERLERZ
AERSRERHEEB R -

B ADERTIRIE =T — — F IR B
Bz mARTTEERERSHE - A/
BERBAAMEMNERCERITRG
10% - AL ERE T — —FRERE
ATEIR HRBARE -

ARrl —E—_FRREEME
o

El:y

Purpose
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W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—H

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 August 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
2012 Share Option Scheme") for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute fo the success of the
Group's operations.

The maximum number of unexercised share opfions currently permitted
to be granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue af any
fime. No share option has been granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme during the period.

A summary of the 2012 Share Option Scheme of the Company is as
follows:

FEER(EFERDBURLBRENRDESREER /S HK
BHARER FAEEEIAKEAFEEARNER 2 EAE
B2ER  BRNMERFEBIARZAERSEE  ABAER
SEERBMENERAREZ BT UHEARBRARRIBRR
ZEBNGEkES  ARERER2EENZSELE N RERM
EBZARREBRR BASEGUBFHERRURAEER
BEBLMBERRKRABELRERES -

To enable the board of directors (the “Board”) to grant options fo
reward eligible participants who, in the sole and absolute opinion of the
Board, would contribute or benefit or had contributed or benefited to the
business, development and growth (and any other aspect whatsoever)
of the Group and/or any of the entities in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest, and fo provide incentives fo eligible
participants fo perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
in the inferests and benefits of the Company and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole, while at the same time allowing the eligible
participants to share the fruits of the Company's business achieved
through their effort and confribution, as well as to enable the Group fo
recruit high quality employees who are valuable to the management
and long ferm business and financial goals and success of the Group.



32.

BRERTEI(E)

ARBZ —F——FEEESIREN
T: (&)

ABERSEE
Eligible participants

AT EITZ ERRER NN FRERAS
HEBRITRAZBN Y

Total number of ordinary shares available for
issue and the percentage of the issued share
capital that if represents as at the

date of the annual report

BR2EEZ GRS
Maximum entiflement of each participant

RIRREI L EREE S < IR
Period within which the securities
must be faken up under an option

RITERTILBHE B BB 2 KR
Minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

RN BT 5UR

Amount payable on acceptance

32.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A summary of the 2012 Share Option Scheme of the Company is as
follows: (Contd

AR2E_T-_FRREEZAL  BARRSERMERR
FERERZEAETRIRBES  THAR SABERER(E
BT ERITRBUNTER ) NEER2EARSHIEHR
AER/SIEAMRBAR RS IREER 2K EERER
(REMEMFE)FERR AR ASETAEABE  FAA B
- REBA - fERSRERGINER BB R#ES - HH SR
%) TP DR RBBBRSEBH -

A person who is entitled to participate in the 2012 Share Option
Scheme, being any fulliime or parHime employees, executives, officers
or directors (including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors| of the Company or any of the subsidiaries or any of
the interested entities and any contractors, advisors, consultants, agents,
suppliers or providers (of, for example, goods, plants and machineries,
materials or services|, customers, distributors, business ally or joint
venture partners of the Group who, in the sole and absolute opinion of
the Board, will contribute or benefit or have contributed or benefited
fo the business, development and growth [and any other aspect
whatsoever) of the Company and/or any of the subsidiaries and/or
any of the interested entities.

87,206,500 RE @R R EBITIRAZ 10% GHEEERRARRIK
RERAEHAH-_T-——FN\A/\B2872,665903KEETK
R) e

87,266,590 ordinary shares and 10% of the issued share capital,
on the basis of 872,665,903 shares in issue as at the date of the
Company's special general meeting on 8 August 2012.

MMEBBMER 1 2 A BEAR RS BITREZ 1%
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

HEHEZRRTERERDBEERESHNETE 2 ARA - 1
Pt < 21 B MR L A EBREE BT (10 FR -

To be determined by the Board on a casetocase basis at its absolute
discrefion and nofified fo the grantee thereof, provided that the expiry

date of the said period shall not be later than ten (10) years from the
date of grant of the option concemned.

HHEZRRIEETE

To be determined at the discretion of the Board.

ﬁ o
Nil.
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32. BRESTEI(E)

ARRlZ —F— —FRRETSIHRED
T: (&)

BETEEIEE

Basis for determining the exercise price

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A summary of the 2012 Share Option Scheme of the Company is as
follows: [Cont'dl)

MRS EBREMNS -

In respect of any particular option:

RITEERERENERR 2 GREHER HAEZRLER_T
——FBERETE CENERREBRERATRTER2ERER
ERRE  HITEENSORUATRER RS

the price per share payable to the Company on the exercise of the
option as may be decided upon and prescribed by the Board on a
casefo-case basis, bearing in mind the purpose of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme, in its absolute discretion upon the grant of the option,
provided that such exercise price shall not be less than the highest of the
following:

() KfpzmEE:

the nominal value of a share;

bl BERERLEH(EREER)NBIMzGHRERMKT K
IKRmE &
the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; and

) EBEEBRERLDBHALO/EZEANBRIMzEARER
PR 2 B FHI I8 & 3k
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five (5] business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option, or

BRBBE( LX) E()fd) 2 TEE(ER)  THAEERHRE
- FRREA T AR(ET R RNEEER T F5
BREZHBEHRARITEEZHRRTRRE -

where applicable, the exercise price for the option concerned (referred
fo a fo [c] above) as may be adjusted by the Board from fime fo time
pursuant fo the rules of the 2012 Share Option Scheme conceming
adjusiments of, inter alia, the exercise price upon the occurrence of any
relevant event as defined in the 2012 Scheme.



32.

33.

BRERTEI(E)

ARBZ —F——FEEESIREN
T: (&)

ATEIZ B TN

The remaining life of the scheme

R B TR A AR S ik
RAG LREZER -

REE-Z—RF+-A=1t—HIH
AREEHEZFHBRRER  —F
——FBRE S T EBREER
H o 1768~ BIEASRRY - TREEARTT
{ERBAHE -

et e

RAME L BEFEASERFRBEEEK
HEPNUBRR  GAREEPR2
5 o

REPINSEEEZBRED RIEH -
AEBEDHEMMBAR B
MEBRERTERE OETRHR °

32.

33.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A summary of the 2012 Share Option Scheme of the Company is as
follows: (Contd

T FBEREEE T —F/\A/\BEF (1 0)FHREINA
ARUR T ZFN\ALBARRRZ SRR RE W

The 2012 Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period of fen
(10 years commencing from 8 August 2012 and expiring at the close
of business hours of the Company on 7 August 2022.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or fo vote
at shareholders” meefings.

During the period ended 31 December 2016 and up fo the date of
approval of these financial statements, no share option under the 2012
Share Option Scheme was granted, exercised, expired or lopsed and
there was no outstanding share option under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current period and prior year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sinoforeign joint
venture enferprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's subsidiaries
which are registered in the PRC has been transferred to statutory reserves
which are resfricted as fo use.

F3; 2016
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34. BEERFERRRER 2D 34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

BEEWNEQE CONTROLLING INTERESTS
ENEEEAFERR R G 2 AEE Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
MBLEZFBEHINMT - interests are set out below.
THEMERNRANE(FE) LA E The information set out below represents the non-controlling interests
MBAR(REAIZABEEL)E in TFHKL and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
B )2 IR A R A “Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group').
—E-RF
t=A ZZ—R%¥
=t-A ZA=1—H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
R R E CBRIEB DL Percentage of equily interest held by
non-controlling interests 5% 40%
FET THTT
HK$'000 HK$000
IR T IR R R 2 Profit/[loss| for the period/year allocated to
B/ FEEF (B8) non-confrolling interests (5,685) 115,660
TR TR AR AR SR A 2 < AR B, Dividend paid to non-ontrolling interests 35,464 184,000
R E R 2 IR AR Accumulated balances of non-controlling inferests
R BFETF at the end of the reporting period 10,339 88,761
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34. BEEIFERRRER 2D 34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

BEWBARE) CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Contd)
TRINFRRAME(EER) KB 2 HMBE The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of
FHEE - BB ETARREHE Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group. The amounts disclosed are
RIS before any infercompany eliminations:
—E-RE N
+ZB=+—H —A=+—8
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Wz Revenue 2,115,532 3,018,427
BHEY R Total expenses, net (1,951,930 (2,729,277)
3R, R R Profit for the period/year 163,602 289,150
BN/ FREEREEHE Total comprehensive income
for the period/year 163,602 289,150
mEEE Current assets 1,233,590 1,514,355
FRBEE Non-current assefs 91,419 117,031
mEBE Current liabilities (1,111,078) (1,213,386)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (7,149) [196,098)
®H,/ (BR)EEEEY Net cash flows from/(used in)

Reang¥sE operating activities (104,668) 438,955
ARKRERB R enEFHE Net cash flows used in investing activities (5,147) (19,275)
ARBERE R REFHE Net cash flows used in financing activities (420,927) (315,114)
BehERBELES Net increase/(decrease] in cash and

#2m/ (Rl ) FeE cash equivalents (530,736) 104,566

F3R 2016
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. REBEOZE

o) TERHIBA

AEERBEEENLH  UH
NERNF—E2t+HEAR - H
HEETHR(HE14)RARE
WE(HEE15) - HAOBR—RIN
ERHPREPXMEMTE R
RERERTRAERELEESHE

%E&o

RB|EHRR  AEERBEELHE
FREPFIMLZ A RELEH
AR A T F 82 R R xR e el
TR

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)  As lessor

The Group leases certain of its machinery (note 14) and
its investment properties [note 15) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one
fo seventy-five months. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants and customers to pay security deposifs and
provide for periodic rental adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants and customers falling due as follows:

—E- Ti —TRF

+ZRA=+- =A=+—H

31 ecember 31 March

2016 2016

FEx FET

HK$000 HK$000

—FR Within one year 14,362 12,620
BEEFRF In the second to

(BEEEME) fifth years, inclusive 23,008 26,227

heFi& Alter five years - 2,009

37,370 40,856
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35. REMENZHE)

(b) TEREFEA

AEBRBEERNTH LA
HEHNTNE=1+EA - &
ﬁ%?%“*%% EB-BT
BekEaTHs

RBEHR - ARERBET AR
HREHEONATEH 2 KRR

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT
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31 December 2016 —E—X¥+=-A=+—H

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of ifs office properties, warehouses,
staff quarters and certain machinery under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from four
fo thirty-six months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases

BB AEENAT

—FR
E_ZERF
(BIEERME)

36. FEIE

BR L SCHYEE 35(b) FF it 2 i & TR AT AR
oh RBEMK - REBHER THIER

HAHE

UER S B
—BATH - ERIERE
RERPDELFELEDF

ZIEETIE
—BETA - BR1ERR

falling due as follows:

—E-RE “E—RF

TZA=t-A =ZA=1-H

31 December 31 March

2016 2016

FEr FET

HK$000 HK$'000

Within one year 25,509 17,597
In the second to

fifth years, inclusive 28,643 13,602

54,152 31,199

36. COMMITMENTS

the reporting period:

In addition to the operating lease commitments defailed in note 35(b)
above, the Group had the following capital commitments af the end of

- _\$ —TRF
+t=ZRA=t-— =RA=t+—H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Property, plant and equipment:
— contracted, but not provided for 151 -
Construction works relating fo properties under
development and properties held for sale:
— contracted, but not provided for 273 393,734
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37. HAREME

(a)

(b)

RBERR - RN B IEAIE
MR EIRBEWT -

HENREEFME AT
R R

R-BE-—RET-A=1T—H8"
AEERBEGEEFLEESERP
DR EZHARNBERAR—
RMBARMARCETYER
BEFAHENKBRERME
R ZERRZHAAEERIBE
RR42,196,0008T(ZF =K
F=ZA=+—H:14,277,000
BT

REBMERAHER L ERIRE
ERRME =R HEREERE
BRI -

ZERRZDFELTER - M
EER/MERNFR - HANE
A ERFETHEEERER
HIZB A B ER BT FE R
B UM SRR Y Bk b
BERIELEE -
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37.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

[a)

in relation to subsidiaries

(bl

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities nof
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Guarantees in respect of performance bonds

—E-REF —E-RF
+=A=t-B =ZA=t-AH
31 December 31 March
2016 2016

FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
343,537 195,469

As af 31 December 2016, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of morigage facilities granted by Shenyang Housing Fund
Management Center relating fo the mortgage loans arranged
for purchases of certain properties developed by a subsidiary of
the Company and the oufstanding mortgage loans under these
guarantees amounted to HK$42,196,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$14,277,000).

The Group's guarantee period sfarts from the dates of grant of the
relevant morigage loans and ends upon issuance of the relevant
ownership cerfificates.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and the direcfors
consider that in case of default in payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage principal fogether with the accrued interest
and penalty and therefore no provision has been made for these
guarantees in the financial statements.



38. BEALRS

BRERBERZEMBREEMILTI - &
SERHMANREEAL LIRS

(o) EHEFEA + 2 FEEETE

RBERR  AEEEAKEN
Al —HRERR kIR
BRRIRSRE 2 B0 RIE R B
BWMERMET7 - 22 R34 - RIE
BB R AMEDIZE 383(1)(d) AT
B PARKEEZBELRR
R A7,284,00087T
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

had the following transactions with related parties during the period:

a)

Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group's balances with its associate, a related
company and a non-controlling interest as at the end of
the reporting period are included in notes 17, 22 and 34,
respectively, to the financial statements. The maximum amount
due from a related company outstanding during the period was
HK$7,284,000 as disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(b) FEELEEEASZHH (6] Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
B=F-—"F
MWA—RZE
—E-RE
+TZA=+-H BE
il —TRE
Period ffom  =A=+—H
1 April HFE
2016 1o Year ended
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FEME B EA Short term employee benefits 217,954 59,795
EREEN Postemployment benefits 84 108
ENTFEEEAR Total compensation paid fo key
2R AERR management personnel 218,038 59,903

FREEHEF BN BIREK
PHEEQ

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 9 fo

the financial statements.

F3; 2016

175



176

Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W % W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=-A=+—H

38. BEALRF (&)

() HALKEEEATZEME

£

(1) HEEEARZIBEIRE

(i

i
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REBEE-_ZE—XE
+-A=+—H81H
B AREEERET
12 #47260,000% 7T
(HEZZT—RF=
A=+—-BLFE:
150,000 70) 9o £
FHRETR(BEB)E
BRAR(=AEILE
(B&)] —HaB
REREERIZA
a]) o

REBEZE-_T—XF
+-A=+—H81tH
B RAREIREAE
BARIRARET
Bl —MAaBsEE
o S /NS DR 1
HEXNEERE W
ZHERTIREI®
44,031,000 T
(BT —~E=
A=+—HILEFE:
993,000 7T ) 5 &
TALHE -

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

Subcontracted works with related companies

(il

i

During the period ended 31 December 2016, the
Group subconiracted engineering and mechanical
works of approximately HK$260,000 (year
ended 31 March 2016: HK$150,000] to Tysan
Engineering (H.K.] Company Limited ("TEHK", o
company ultimately controlled by Mr. Fung).

During the period ended 31 December 2016, Tysan
Building Construction Company limited {“TBC”,
a company ultimately controlled by Mr. Fung]
subcontracted rental and engineering works relating
fo tower cranes of approximately HK$4,031,000
[year ended 31 March 2016: HK$993,000) to the
Group.



38. BEALRF (&)

fc)

B EEETE L Al 2 B

£ (#)

) HEEATZHEIR

(%)

(i)

(iv)

REBEE-_Z—RF
+ZA=+—HL
HE ZARET

EHEITRELD
24,409,000% T
(BE-Z2—X~F=
A=+—BLFE:
B)DBTARER -

RBE-_T—-XF
+ZA=+—H1tH
B AEEBEET
WAYEZBEETR
#]1,683,000% T
(BEZZ—X~F=
A=T—RHLHFE:
)/\E]ﬁ“?‘?%%?@
IEZW% ARA
TRREAFRA

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016 —E—X¥+=-A=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(c)]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

(1) Subcontracted works with related companies [Contd)

(i)

(iv)

During the period ended 31 December 2016, TBC
subcontracted foundation works of approximately
HK$24,409,000 (year ended 31 March 2016
Nil) o the Group.

During the period ended 31 December 2016
the Group subcontracted the renovation works of
certain of its office properties of approximately
HK$ 1,683,000 (year ended 31 March 2016: Nil)

fo Tysan Project Management limited, a subsidiary

of TBC.
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38. BEALRF (&)

() HALREEEATZEME

£ (&)

2) WEBELARZHEERX
REEER

(i

i
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REE-_T—XF
+-A=+—HB1t
HE ZERET
BESRRAEHE
TREAERIRE
B B f521,0008
TEE-_T—AF
=AR=+—BL1t#
& : 695,000 7T )
% 204,000 TT(#
EZE-—RFE=ZHA
=+—-HLFE:
269,0007T) °

REBEZE-_T—XF
+-A=+—H1
HE RFITRE
Ao RlRAEER
FHEERIRER
2 F151,000/% T
(BEZZ—~F=
A=+—HLEFE:
202,000% Tt ) &
59,0008 T(#HE=
E-—RE=ZA=1+—
HIE % E : 78,000
AT ©

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

(2) Rental charges and management fees received from

related companies

(il

i

During the period ended 31 December 2016,
TBC paid rental charge and management fee of
HK$521,000 (year ended 31 March 2016:
HK$695,000) and HK$204,000 (year ended 31
March 2016: HK$269,000), respectively, to the
Group.

During the period ended 31 December 2016,
TEHK paid rental charge and management fee
of HK$151,000 (year ended 31 March 2016:
HK$202,000) and HK$59,000 (year ended 31
March 2016: HK$78,000), respectively, to the
Group.



38. BE

fc)

ALRG(E)
HALFFHEL A AMI

£ (&)

2 WEBEEAAZEERX
REBER(E)

i) REBEZZE-—REF
+ZA=+—H81t
HE mMEE25F
BRAR(—HEBEE
EREEFMRGE)
EXRRAEEX
NHERTRER
B F126,000% T
(BEZZ—X~F=
A=Z+—HLLEE:
168,000% T ) &
49 0008 L(BE =
Z-RNEZA=1+—
B I F & : 66,000
BT o

B) RBEZZ-—RF+=A
=+ —BIEHSE AEE
M-—ZEEEBRABZN
RERBHERELEZY
¥ K& 51,002,000%
TBE_ZT-RF=H
ST—BLEFE: &) %
METRBAAEEE A
FEAERTFRMECEUE
BRIGHLE -

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT
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31 December 2016 —E—X¥+=-A=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(c)]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

(2)

(3)

Rental charges and management fees received from
related companies (Contd)

(i) During the period ended 31 December 2016,
Cando Trading limited (a company ultimately
controlled by Mr. Fung) paid rental charge and
management fee of HK$126,000 (year ended 31
March 2016: HK$168,000) and HK$49,000
(year ended 31 March 2016: HK$66,000,
respectively, fo the Group.

During the period ended 31 December 2016, the Group
sold property held for sale to a close family member of
one of the key management personnel at a consideration
of HK$1,002,000 (year ended 31 March 2016: Nil).
This property was sold according fo prices and conditions
similar fo those offered fo other non-related customers of the
Group.
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38. BEALRZ(E) 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
[c) HEAXZBEELAZHRMI (c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

7 (%) (Contd)

4 REBZE-ZT—X<F+=A8 (4)  During the period ended 31 December 2016 and year
“+—-AIYEEREE - ended 31 March 2016, Mr. Fung provided personal
E-XE-A=+—HI guarantees to financial institutions in connection with
ERE . BEAERAQTE general credit facilities and performance bonds granted to
THERTER, 1= cerfain subsidiaries of the Company.

EERMENREERH
PR R L E AR -

s B Ty N e B B E BE These fransactions were enfered into by the Group and ifs related
TIRBR S KT o companies in accordance with the terms of the agreements.
EXE LN RICENBEATT S The related party transactions in respect of items (c)(1) and (c)(2) above
AR B SRR M 30 Fr st v i = and the acquisition as detailed in note 39 fo the financial statements
BEERT ETEEUIASHRTE also constituted connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
HBERS - B (4B EE of the Llisting Rules. Personal guarantees provided by Mr. Fung as
EA IR At 7 A ARSI T B disclosed in item (c](4) above consfitute connected fransactions as
AASFFRTHEESS - ERGE defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are exempted from the

FETIBEIE UAS BT o disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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39.

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN A
SUBSIDIARY

On 19 April 2016, the Company, Fortunate Pool and Mr. Fung entered
info a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed fo purchase and Fortunate Pool agreed fo sell 40% equity
interest in TFHKL, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Foundation Transaction”). Fortunate Pool, which is wholly-owned by

Mr. Fung, an Executive Director of the Company, is the non-controlling
shareholder of 40% issued shares of TFHKL.

The Foundation Transaction fakes place in two phases. Phase 1 of
the Foundation Transaction was completed on 4 July 2016 when the
Company paid cash of HK$732,192,000 fo acquire 35% equity
interest in TFHKL (the “Phase 1 Transaction”). Immediately after the
complefion of Phase 1 Transaction, the Company's equity inferest in
TFHKL increased from 60% to 95%. Such transaction was accounted for
as an equity fransaction and the debit difference of HK$694,919,000
between the consideration of HK$732,192,000 and the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interest of HK$37,273,000 was
recorded in the refained profits in the equity. Phase 2 of the Foundation
Transaction, in which the Company will pay cash of HK$ 104,598,000
fo acquire the remaining 5% equity interest in TFHKL, shall take place
on or before 30 June 2017. Phase 2 of the Foundation Transaction
was accounted for as a forward confract to acquire the shares held by
the non-controlling inferests in a subsidiary. The consideration payable
of HK$104,598,000 was recognised as other payable and the
corresponding debit was made fo the forward equity contract in the

equity.

Further details of the Foundation Transaction are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 19 April 2016, 30 June 2016 and
4 July 2016, and circular dated 23 May 2016.
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40.

HE B A E)

(a)  HiE Trevino Worldwide

Limited ([ Trevino_/)

RZZE—REMA—H ~5H
-8 E=F(TevinoE
AL —BEERZ - Bt
Trevino B 77 4 B Trevino 2 100%
R Trevino RIS AEE 2 B 8
% ] & 307,000 T BK
8 5A396,000% 7t([TrevinoH
&) e TrevinoHER ZE—RF
MM AFEHZEMK  Trevino & — B
BERBREANeef o REERA
al

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a] Disposal of Trevino Worldwide Limited (“Trevino”)

On 1 April 2016, the Group and an independent third party
(the “Trevino Purchaser’] enfered info a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant fo which, the Trevino Purchaser acquired the
100% equity interest in Trevino and the inferestfree shareholder's
loan of HK$307,000 owing by Trevino to the Group at a
fotal consideration of HK$396,000 (the “Trevino Disposal’).
The Trevino Disposal was complefed on 5 April 2016. Trevino
was an investment holding company which held a golf club
membership.

A
+=RA=+-H
31 December
2016
FET
HK$000

HEZEERE Net assefs disposed of:
HibEE Other assets 270
REAEEZER Loan from the Group (307)
(37)
BEEREAEEZER Loan from the Group assigned 307
HE—RIMB 2R e Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 126
396
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W % # 3 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016 —E—X¥+=-A=+—H

40. HEMBAR(E) 40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
(a) HiE Trevino Worldwide (a]  Disposal of Trevino Worldwide Limited (“Trevino”)
Limited ([ Trevino ]) (#) (Cont'd)
ZE-RE
+ZA=+-H
31 December
2016
FET
HK$000
PANIVES N Satisfied by:

BerE Cash consideration 396
HRTrevino HE 2R & RERR An analysis of the nef inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
SHEEFRAZATNOT respect of the Trevino Disposal during the period is as follows:

—E-RE
+=A=+-"
31 December
2016
FET
HK$000
BHERME K Trevino HE 2B & & Cash consideration and inflow of cash and cash equivalents
FRREBEERA in respect of the Trevino Disposal 396
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40.

HEHBRE (&)

(6]

HEEIREBIR A 7 ([ %
RE])

RZF—-RE+=R+—RH"
AEEEBYFE=H(FRE
EEADIIL—BEEEHRZ
Bl SRBEEFUEGR
REZE2BBRERBREE
BRrAAEBZ2RBEREER
234950008 0 BRE A
A R #&87 500,000t(#8 &
105,577,000 T )([B K&
HE]D - BRBRELER-ZT
—RFE+-A+—HREK - F
RETZHELENEWEAER
EEEBTAEEERERZ LS
EMABBERER25EEM 2
AfEEA

HE-_T-XF=HAH=+—8H
HTFEFE BEERREKEA
R #83,000,000L(f8 & »
100,192,000/ 7T ) # T X
fEAR#4,500,0007(H8 & »
53490008 T ERBE-S
—ANE+ZA=+—HIHEK
B e
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(6]  Disposal of Hiat Investment Limited (“Hiat Investment”)

On 11 December 2015, the Group and an independent third
party (the “Hiaf Investment Purchaser”), entered info a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which, the Hiat Investment
Purchaser acquired the entire equity interest in Hiat Investment
and the interestfree shareholder's loan of HK$23,495,000
owing by Hiat Investment to the Group at a fofal consideration
of RMB87,500,000 (equivalent to HK$105,577,000] (the
"Hiat Investment Disposal”). The Hiat Investment Disposal
was completed on 11 December 2015. Hiat Investment was
principally engaged in the property leasing and management
business in Shanghai and the registered owner of the whole of
Block B and twentyfive car parks of Aidu Apariment located in
Shanghai for residential use.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, a cash consideration
of RMB83,000,000 (equivalent to HK$100,192,000) was
received. The remaining consideration of RMB4,500,000
(equivalent to HK$5,349,000) was received during the period
ended 31 December 2016.



HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W % # 3 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

40. HEMBAR(E) 40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES [Cont'd)
(b) HEZEKREBR LA ([EE (6]  Disposal of Hiat Investment Limited (“Hiat Investment”)

KBE&E /) (&) (Cont'd)
—ERF
=A=+—H
Hiat 31 March
Nofes 2016
TET
HK$ 000

HEZEERE Net assefs disposed of:
ER: Property, plant and equipment 14 43
KREME Investment properties 15 134,812
FRFOE - Al REMBEYWFIE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 153
Re RIRTER Cash and bank balances 63
ERTE 5 R N Bt A Trade payables and accruals (132)
Hfth 508 Other payables (3)
BRERIEER Deferred tax liabilities 30 (13,456)
REAEEZER Loan from the Group (23,495)
Q7 985
FRRREE 3 F B Release of exchange fluctuation reserve (13,898
BEEREAEEZEK Loan from the Group assigned 23,495
HE—FMNBAR &8 Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (2,005)
105,577

ATBIFAX - Satisfied by:

RerE Cash consideration 100,192
Hh e WKIE Other receivable 5,385
BRE Total consideration 105,577
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40. HEMBAR(E) 40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES [Cont'd)
(b) HEEFEKEERLE]([ &% (6]  Disposal of Hiat Investment Limited (“Hiat Investment”)
RE ) (&) (Cont'd
BE_T-—R"F=ZA=+—HLt An analysis of the nef inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
FE BRRELEZRERTE respect of the Hiat Investment Disposal during the year ended 31
RREBEFRAZDOTAOT March 2016 was as follows:
A
=R=+—8H
31 March
2016
TIET
HK$ 000
ReRE Cash consideration 100,192
BEHERE RRITARE Cash and bank balances disposed of (63)
BRRELEZHER Net inflow of cash and cash
FRREEEFR equivalents in respect
of the Hiat Investment Disposal 100,129
(c) HE LA BB F % (c) Disposal of Shanghai China Garden International Real
HEBRA ([ LEEE]) Estate Development & Management Company Limited
(“Shanghai China Garden”)
RZE—RFE+—A++8- On 17 November 2015, the Group and an independent
AEEEBYE=HF(TLBE third party (the “Shanghai China Garden Purchaser”), enfered
ERADNIU-—EEEHZ info a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
Bt EBEREAFWELS Shanghai China Garden Purchaser acquired the entire equity
EFERz22HRE REAA interest in Shanghai China Garden at a consideration of
R #318,527,000(# & » RMB318,527,000 (equivalent to HK$375,767,000) (the
375,767,000 ) L BEER "Shanghai China Garden Disposal’]. The Shanghai China
HE]D EBERBER-Z Garden Disposal was completed on 1 February 2016. Shanghai
—NE-_A—HBEK - LBER China Garden was principally engaged in the property leasing
TEELENREMERERER and management business in Shanghai and was the registered
¥BURBEEMEERIZ owner of the residential properties known as “China Garden” in

AMEEA © Shanghai.
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W % # 3 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(c)] Disposal of Shanghai China Garden International Real

Estate Development & Management Company Limited
(“Shanghai China Garden”) (Contd)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, a cash consideration
of RMB141,750,000 [equivalent to HK$164,218,000) was
received. The remaining consideration of RMB176,777,000
(equivalent to HK$210,591,000] was received during the

period ended 31 December 2016.

Net assefs disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Inventories

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Trade payables and accruals

Other payables, deposits received and
receipfs in advance

Deferred tax liabilities

Release of exchange fluctuation reserve
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Other receivables

Total consideration

“E—RF

=A=+—H

i3 31 March
Notes

2016
TET
HK$ 000

14 48
15 353,910
Q

95

14,265

(3,137)

(7,045)
30 (74,6006

283,539
[22,629)
114,857

375,767
164,218

211,549

375,767
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40. HENRBAR(E) 40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(c] HELEEEERREHER [c)  Disposal of Shanghai China Garden International Real Estate
HEBRA A ([ LEEE]) Development & Management Company Limited (“Shanghai
(#&) China Garden”) (Contd)

BE_T-—R"F=ZA=1+—H1Lt An analysis of the nef inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
FE - LEERLEZRERE respect of the Shanghai China Garden Disposal during the year
RRSBEFRAZONAOT ended 31 March 2016 was as follows:
7 /\ﬂE
=RA=t+—H
31 March
2016
TET
HK$000
ReRE Cash consideration 164,218
EHERE RRITER Cash and bank balances disposed of (14,265)
PEERHEZRER Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
FRRTBEEFRA in respect of the Shanghai
China Garden Disposal 149,953
EHLBERHEZE— TP Further defails of the Shanghai China Garden Disposal were
B #RAREABMAZS—H disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 17 November
F+—A+tHAzAE - 2015.
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BRERESEMTE

N

SRR IAZREED

41.

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W % # 3 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets

—E-XE+ZA=+-H

A ERE

ITHESRTA

FEE SRR K
FERES

H it FEUTIR

EHFER

Re hiR1T47

Availablefor-sale investment

Derivative financial instrument

Trade and retention
receivables

Other receivables

Time deposifs

Cash and bank balances

31 December 2016

BAVE
FFABEZ
EREE-
BEEE
Financial
asset AHHE
at fair value EREE
EMR through Available-
FEW R profit or for-sale
Loans and loss - held financial et
receivables  for frading assefs Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
- - 1,112 1,112
= 39,721 - 39,721
797,878 — - 797,878
19,682 = S 19,682
1,527,486 — — 1,527,486
330,962 — - 330,962
2,676,008 39,721 1,112 2,716,841
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4. BRERES2EMIAE) 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Contd)
RBESHR SEERTIAZREEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
T: (&) as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Contd
THEEE) Financial assets (Contd)

—E-RF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2016
BRTE
FABHZ
TREE—
HEEE
Financial
assef AfHE
at fair value SHEE
ERk through Available-
FENTRIR profit or forsale
loans and loss - held financial et
receivables  for trading assefs Total

TET TET TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

AEHERE Availablefor-sale investment = = 1,197 1,197
TEEBMT A Derivative financial instrument = 8,533 = 8,533

FEWE ZRRF K Trade and retention
FEYRE & receivables 727,243 = = 727,243
Hib e RIA Other receivables 231,977 = = 231,977
ab-livES Time deposits 1,303,589 = — 1,303,589
Be MRITER Cash and bank balances 502,830 = = 502,830
2,765,639 8,533 1,197 2,775,369
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Contd)

RREBRR - R ITAZREEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
T: (&) as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Contd)
2HIEE Financial liabilities
-t /_$ T—RF
+=A= :ﬁ =+—HA
31 ecember 31 March
2016 2016
1) SR
ERAR TRBE
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised at amortised
cost cost
FET T
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BN EZRR N ENRE S Trade and refention payables 492,682 385,134
Hip e IR Other payables 111,971 21,325
fit SRITIEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 475,210 856,946
1,079,863 1,263,405

TRTRZ A FESRERE

AEEH-RABAMAEEFEZE
BB —TETE SR I A - Z0TE
EMIAARXXERES  KARME
8% RREUERRHERERERX 2
BERTTE - ZERAMAZIETIZH
BRG A piEERRREERNE
1% ORENE R AR o RN E B H
ZEEEREATEER -

42. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group enfered info a derivative financial insfrument with a financial

insfitution with AAA credit rating. The derivative financial instrument

which is a cross currency swap, was measured using valuation

techniques similar to forward pricing and swap models, using present

value calculations. The model incorporates various market observable

inputs including the expected forward rate or price, volatility and interest

rate curves. The carrying amount of the cross currency swap is the same

as its fair value.
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42. TRTHRZ NIV ESREEE)

THRRGARAEEERIAZAYE
ATEERAE

RZE-RNF+ZH=+-BR=Z

42. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Contd)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group's financial insfruments:

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2016 and 31

—REZA=+-HRRLFEFEZE March 2016:
=
ZE-~E+ZB=1-H —E-¥=A=t-H
31 December 2016 31 March 2016
NVE SRR ATEERR
Fair value measurement using Fair value measurement using
IR EX EX AR EX A
mEHE TER  TUBR MmF4E IEx  TIBE
(E18) 8B AZE 8§ %8 (F1E) & AEE BAIE
Quoed  ($2B)  (£3E) Quied  ($2B)  (£3B)
pice  Significont  Significant pice  Significant  Significont
inactive  observable  unobservable inacive  obsevable  unobsenvable
morkefs inputs inputs @zt morkels inpus inpus a5t
(Level 1) [Level 2) (Level 3) Total (level 1) (Level 2| (Level 3 Tofal
FEr FiEr Fién FEn FET TET T AT
HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO  MKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO

TEERIA Derivative financial

instrument =

39721 = 39721 - 8,933 - §,933

RZEBE—RNFE+-_A=+—H ' ~&E
TEEMEAFEFEZEBEEZ
E-REZA=1+-0 &)

HA - F1EBEF2E AT EERL
HETESSR  TESHEENGRE
EBARBLEIB(RE_T—RF
“A=T—RLFE:E)-
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The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value

as at 31 December 2016 (31 March 2016: Nil).

During the period, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between level 1 and level 2 and no transfers info or out of level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities [year ended 31 March

2016: Nil).
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank
balances, time deposits, frade and refention and other receivables,
frade and refention and other payables and bank borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to these
financial statements. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures
fo ensure that appropriate measures are implemented in a fimely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assefs are cash and bank balances,
fime deposits, and frade and other receivables.

The credit risk on bank balances and time deposits is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international creditrating agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily atfributable fo its frade and refention
and other receivables. The management of the Group monitors each
individual frade debt on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure fo
bad debts is not significant. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk, with the exposure spreading over a large number of
counterparties and customers. Further quantitative dafa in respect of the
Group's exposure to credif risk arising from frade and refention and
other receivables are disclosed in notes 22 and 23 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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IHEREEBERBER(E)

TET]

AEEmEEE 2 IR EHER T 2 mRH
BIRTIEEEL - FEEEEARET
HR R By o ARSI B AL AN R B
B - BEM - AREEEEEEA
R P E bR < A R B R IS E B T R
FTSL S BB DM KRB ©

TRITERBEMESEFTEZE
AT AEB RSN GEBEF
BIEEZHE) MAKE 2 s CRATH
%RIEZEHT/EHU);WJTWEA@—J
REEE) 2B

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure fo changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
fo ifs interestbearing bank borrowings. Borrowings af variable rates
expose the Group fo interest rafe risk. The Group currently does not
have an inferest rate hedging policy. However, the management of
the Group monitors the Group's interest rate exposure and considers
enfering info interest rate swaps fo reduce its exposure fo interest rate
fluctuations should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held consfant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings| and the Group's equity [before any impact on tax).

BRELA
=R A
Increase Decrease RERED *
in interest in profit Decrease
rate  before tax in equity *
TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$000
BE-Z—RE Period ended 31 December 2016
+-A=t+—HIHHE
PITER Bank borrowings 100 {EE % (4,759 —
100 basis
points
BE_T—RF Year ended 31 March 2016
“A=+—HItFE
RITEN Bank borrowings 100 A2, (8,585) =
100 basis
poinfs
* TEEREEF * Excluding refained profits
SMNE[E R Foreign exchange risk

ARETERFERTEAMLE
fV EABARZENETRARE S

o AR AREZPRBRITEEN
‘}%T_EEHE

W@J"‘?i?%’%ﬁf’%$¢lﬁﬁﬁﬁz S L
 UHRNERERE BRI L RHIMNE
6\%’9
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The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China with
most of ifs transactions seffled in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. In
the current period, all of the Group's bank borrowings are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

Management monitors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and considers entering into forward currency contracts when the
need arises.
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43. M¥ERAREEEEREEE) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

SERE () Foreign exchange risk (Contd
TRIITERBEMEBEHTEZE The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
AT NREPRAEE ZBRTATE A reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Renminbi
(ERNEMEENEGBZATEZS)H exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
ARBEXHE AR A ZE 2 #x profit before fax (due fo changes in the fair value of monetary assefs
1 o and liabilities).
BxEH BREADERIEM
Increase Increase
in exchange in profit
rafe before tax
% FET
% HK$ 000
HE-Z—RE Period ended 31 December 2016
TZA=+—-HLEHE
BT ARBERE I Hong Kong dollar weakens
against Renminbi 5 16,031
BE_ZT—F Year ended 31 March 2016
ZA=tT—HIFE
METEARBRE If Hong Kong dollar weakens
against Renminbi 5 19,169

F3; 2016 195
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43. BBREREERRERBEE) 43.

MEELTERE

AEEZBRREBNARITEERER
BEDESRBEIULBRHTE - K
SETHRTETIBESHN  BRA
AT E RN EL B A E o

REBECATORMRRR - A TEIIAE
ERHEHRzeBAEIHA

ERESEFREMNRES  Trade and refention payables

Eft MR Other payables
S sRiThaE > Interestbearing bank
borowings *
AEOREERNBAR Guarantees in respect
e iR of performance

bonds in relation
o subsidiaries
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is fo mainfain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The
Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

is as follows:
“E-AFTZA=T-H
31 December 2016
12f8AA 1255 SENLE
REREE Less than 105 Over &t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total

FEn FEn FiEr FEn FiEr
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000

- 492,682 - - 492,682
= 111,971 S = 111,971

3,220 124976 289,856 57,835 475,887

343,537 = S = 343,537

346,757 729,629 289,856 57,835 1,424,077
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MEETERE ()

RIECATORMIRER - U TEIIAK
ERBGEHR EMARIHA : (B)

ENESEZNERRES  Tode and retention

payables
Eft R Other payables
MERTRE* Inferest bearing bank
borrowings *
AEORBERHERR Guarantees in respect of
fEi 2 iR performance

bonds in relation to
subsidiaries

* RZE—R"F+-A=+—Bk=%
—RNEZA=1+—H HWERTHE
SREHAREKEREETER
AEBEREENEREREZERZ
FITEF D5 A3,220,000% Tt &
6,100,000 7t + B + Bt kit B 2B
MRME  ZESBEEDEAEREK
BIEE -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows: (Contd

“2-R"¥=A=1-H
31 March 2016
1218R AR 125% SENE
RELEE Less than 1105 Over @5
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total
TET THET TET THET TAET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
- 385,134 - - 385,134
- 21,325 - - 21,325
6,100 193,274 509,410 59,669 858,453
195,469 - - - 195,469
201,569 599,733 599,410 50,669 1,460,381

Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings were bank loans of

HK$3,220,000 and HK$6,100,000 as at 31 December 2016 and
31 March 2016, respectively, which contained a repayment on demand

clause giving the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any

fime and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, these

amounts were classified as on demand.
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BEHA LMRBRERGE - HESF
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F+ZA=+—H FBHFHN12E
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Contd)

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the
directors do not believe that the bank loans will be called in their
entirety within 12 months, and they consider that the bank loans will
be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the
respective agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the
financial position of the Group af the date of approval of the financial
statements; the Group's compliance with the loan covenants; the
lack of events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the
terms of bank loans, the maturity ferms at 31 December 2016 were
amounts of HK$128,196,000 (31 March 2016: HK$197,114,000)
payable in less than 12 months; HK$289,856,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$601,670,000) payable in one to five years, inclusive; and
HK$57,835,000 (31 March 2016: HK$59,669,000) payable over

five years.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to confinue as a going concern and
fo mainfain healthy capital ratios in order o support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages ifs capital structure and makes adjustments fo
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, refun capital fo shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the period ended 31 December 2016 and
year ended 31 March 2016.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Capital management [Cont d

The Group monifors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio not exceeding 50%. Net debt includes frade
and refention payables, other payables and interest-bearing bank
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes tofal equity
of the Group. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

:§—1$ —E—RF

+=RA= =A=t—-H

31 ecember 31 March

2016 2016

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$ 000

ENESRFNEMNRE S Trade and refention payables 492,682 385,134
HipEIA Other payables 111,971 21,325
fit RRITIEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 475,210 856,946
B EEITFRR less: Time deposits (1,527,486) (1,303,589
Be RIBITHET Cash and bank balances (330,962 [502,830)
BRe%s Nef cash (778,585) (543,014
Bt Total equity 2,959,730 2,777,192

BEXABELE Gearing rafio N/A T f N/A i
F3R 2016
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44, REMEBH

e
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RZE—+FZA+H " £AAF
ZEEWMBRARREREBERA
A([HE]) B EBFITHEK
([ EBBUT D RBLREEN
EREREIREIFHEEAN

BEN D ER 3 656457 2 — g i
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5,529,700,0007% Jt o U B
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44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a] Acquisition of a piece of land parcel

On 7 February 2017, Top Genius Holdings Limited {“Top
Genius"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
a piece of land parcel (the “land Parcel NKIL 6564"), known
as New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6564, on Kai Tak Area 1L
Site 1, Kai Tak, Kowloon, Hong Kong, from the Government
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR"] at a
premium of HK$5,529,700,000. The acquisition of the Land
Parcel NKIL 6564 was financed by a combination of the Group's
internal resources, an interest-bearing bank loan (the “Bank
loan") of HK$2,602,000,000 under a bank loan agreement
the (the “Bank Loan Agreement’) and an unsecured, interest-
free shareholder's loan of HK$2,750,000,000 from HNA
Finance | Co., ltd. The acquisition of the Land Parcel NKIL 6564
constituted a very substantial acquisition of the Group pursuant fo
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont'd)

(a] Acquisition of a piece of land parcel [Cont'd)

In accordance with the terms of the Bank Loan Agreement, Top
Genius is required to ensure participating banks take up the
relevant rights and obligations in connection with 50% of the
Bank Loan, amounting to HK$1,301,000,000, transferred
from the original lender (the “Transfer”) and such Transfer
should be completed within three months from the date of the
Bank Loan Agreement (i.e. 20 May 2017). Up to the date
of approval of the financial statements, a participating bank
has confirmed to take up certain portion of the Bank Loan,
amounting to approximately HK$1,000,000,000 (the “Transfer
loan”). Regarding the remaining portion of the Bank loan,
amounting to approximately HK$301,000,000 (the “Non-
fransferred Loan”) required to be transferred, the Directors are in
negofiations with the original lender to take up such amount such
that the total amount borrowed from the original lender will be
HK$1,602,000,000. If the original lender is not able to obtain
internal approval fo fake up the additional HK$301,000,000,
the Group will repay the Non-ransferred Loan in May 2017 from
its infernal resources.

Further details of the acquisition of the Land Parcel NKIL 6564
and the respective financing were disclosed in the Company's
announcements dated 25 January 2017, 7 February 2017 and
15 March 2017 and circular dated 13 March 2017.
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44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont'd)

(6]  Possible acquisition of a piece of land parcel

On 15 March 2017, Milway Development Limited (*Milway”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, received an
acceptance letter issued by the HKSAR informing Milway that
the tender bid for acquisition of a piece of land parcel [the
“land Parcel NKIL 6563"), known as New Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 6563, on Kai Tak Area 1L Site 2, Kai Tak, Kowloon,
Hong Kong has been successfully accepted at a premium of
HK$7,440,500,000. On 10 March 2017, Milway has made
a non-refundable deposit of HK$25,000,000 for the tender
and such deposit will be applied towards part payment of the
premium. The premium payable by Milway will be financed by
the Group's infernal resources, bank loans and/or an inferest
free unsecured loan from HNA Finance | Co., lid. The possible
acquisition of the Land Parcel NKIL 6563 is expected to constitute
a very substantial acquisition of the Group pursuant to Chapter
14 of the listing Rules. The obtaining of the land Parcel NKIL
6563 is subject to the entering into of the memorandum of

agreement with the HKSAR.

Further details of the possible acquisiion of the Land Parcel NKIL
6563 were disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 15

March 2017.

45. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Cerfain comparative amounts in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, notes 5 and 8 1o the financial statements have been reclassified to

conform with the current period's presentation.
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46. KRR RFBARR R 46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
REBEHRRRA] 2 BB R 2 B Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at
(I the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-RF —EREF
+=ZA=+—H =RA=+—H
31 December 31 March
2016 2016
FHET THT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ER Property, plant and equipment 3,807 =
AP EENEIE Interests in subsidiaries 1,120,185 995,911
BRBEE Total current assets 1,123,992 905911
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
—XMBRRIRK Amount due from a subsidiary 67 73
FANFIE - A REMEYKIE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 3,309 199
TEHITE K Time deposits 1,140,000 200,000
RITEETF Bank balances 9,993 19,741
BRBEE Total current assets 1,153,369 220,013
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BB Z IR N A T IE Trade payables and accruals 4,042 3,141
HpENFIENRE WG & Other payables and deposits received 104,975 229
BREBEE Total current liabilities 109,017 3,370
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,044,352 216,643
BEERREARE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,168,344 1,212,554
ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
FEETFRIE Accrual — 4,387
BESE Net assefs 2,168,344 1,208,167
R EQUITY
BT AR Issued capital 113,416 87,466
() Reserves (nofe) 2,054,928 1,120,701
Biem Total equity 2,168,344 1,208,167
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46. AR BB K(E) 46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Contd)
BisE - Note:
ARAZ T A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
EHRE
RADRENR BHEEY
Share  BIAZRER Forward  REEF
premium  Confributed equity Retained st
account surplus contract profits Total

TET TET TET THET TET
HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000 — HK$00O  HK$000

RZZE-RFNA—H At 1 April 2015 563,861 29,950 - 319,320 Q13,131
REZHF Profit for the year = = = 513,703 513,703
FAZEK LR Tofal comprehensive income
for the year = = - 513703 513,703
—E-HFEEIR 2015 final dividend
KORAS 2 REARR & declared and paid = = —  (131,200) (131,200
ZE-RFHRHRE 2016 interim dividend = = —  (174,933)  (174,933)
B EHARR Transfer to contributed surplus (563,861) 563,861 S S =
RZZE—R"F=A=+—H At 31 March 2016 and
k=F—R"FMA—H 1 Apiil 2016 — 503,811 - 526,890 1,120,701
HNE A Profit for the period - - - 6,675 6,675
RS EN LR Tofal comprehensive income
for the period — — - 6,675 6,675
BT (BI3E31) Issue of shares (note 31} 1,032,810 - - 1,032,810
R EITRZ (M52 31)  Share issue expenses (note 31) (660) - - — (660)
EHWE-—FRMNELRZ  Foward acquisition
gasME R (5T 39) of additional interests
in a subsidiary (note 39) — — (104,598 —  (104,598)
RZE—RF
+-A=+—~H At 31 December 2016 1,032,150 593,811  (104,598) 533,565 2,054,928
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46.

47.

RATBARRE(E)

ARBBABRBKERARA RN L
mh RER-NANA-—F2&EE
B AZMBARRN A FERL
RBARREEITRN < HE 2 #HE
29,950,000/ 7T * WLoh - RBEA QA
R-ZE-RF\ALABTZRIEF
RELBBIFRIRER  ARAR
“E-RFNALBEZBNEBRZE
HPHE BR £ %2 563,861,000 7T T A
o W ELE C ERFBRAARL
ABARSE - RE-NN\—FARE
DEE  EETERT - ARA] A LAR
BERIEH D IR B R o

BTz

EERAR T tF=A-tLElLE
BT BB HE -

46.

47.

HFHREHBEERBEFALEMARAT

W % # 3 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 —ZE—XE+=-A=+—H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Contd)

The contributed surplus of the Company included the excess of the fair
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 1991 prior to the listing of the Company's shares, over
the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange therefor
amounting to HK$29,950,000. In addition, pursuant to a special
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 7 August 2015, the entire amount of HK$563,861,000 standing
fo the credit of share premium account of the Company as af 7 August
2015 was cancelled, and the corresponding balance arising therefrom
was credited fo the contributed surplus account of the Company.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company may make
distributions fo its members out of the contributed surplus under certain

circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial stafements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 27 March 2017.
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